SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
December 3, 2015
9:00 a.m.
Pleasc Note: The first business item on the Agenda is Closed Session. The Board will
reconvene in Open Session at 10:00 _a.m. or immediately following the Closed Session,
whichever is later.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, December 3,
2015, in the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20" Street Mall — Third Floor, 344 — 20 Street,
Oakland, California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board™ form (available at the entrance to the Board
Room) and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to
discuss a matter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public
Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

ltems placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted,
approved, or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is
received from a Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings,
as there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals
who are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be
made within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested.
Please contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in
the BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/f CATRANBAR T/subscriber/mew?topic_id=CATRANBA
RT _1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda
packets (in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in
advance of the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 231 Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may
desire in connection with:

1. CALLTO ORDER

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
C. Introduction of Special Guests.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A.  Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of November 19, 2015.* Board
requested to authorize.

B. Removal of Term Limit for Reserve Fund/Risk Management Ad Hoc
Committee.* Board requested to ratify,

C. Resolution Authorizing Statement of Continued Interest for Funding from
the Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program.* Board
requested to adopt.

3. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS; PUBLIC EMPLOYEE
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Agency Negotiators: Directors Blalock, Radulovich, and Keller
Titles: General Manager, General Counsel,
Controller/Treasurer, District Secretary, and
Independent Police Auditor
Gov’t. Code Sections: 54957 and 54957.6

4. OPEN SESSION (10:00 a.m. or immediately following the Closed Session, whichever is later,)

A, Compensation and Benefits for General Manager, General Counsel,
District Secretary, and Independent Police Auditor. Board requested to
authorize.

5. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS
Director Keller, Chairperson

A. Professional Services Agreement with the Mineta Transportation Institute
for Workforce Development, Education, Research and Other Services. *
Board requested to authorize.

B. Title VI Assessment for Discontinuing the BART Plus Ticket Program.*
Board requested to approve.

* Attachment available 20f4



C. Change Order to Agreement No. 6M4135, Short and Long Term
Disability, and Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance
Services, with Standard Insurance Company, for Time Extension and
Increase of Contract Value.* Board requested to authorize.

6. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS
Director McPartland, Chairperson

A, (CONTINUED from November 19, 2015, Board Meeting)
Award of Contract No, 110G-130A, Balboa Park Station — Phase 2.*
Board requested to authorize.

B. Agreements for Detailed Station Cleaning Services.*
a. Agreement No, 6M8098A, with Aim to Please Janitorial Services, Inc.
b. Agreement No. 6M8099, with Zero Waste Solutions
¢. Agreement No. 6M8100, with Bay Area Green Solutions
Board requested to authorize.

C.  Train Control Modernization Program for the Design, Supply and
Installation of a Communications Based Train Control (CBTC) System
(Project) and Implementation Actions, including Solicitation Documents
for a CBTC System Using Design-Build Procurement Method.* Board
requested to approve and authorize,

7. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Raburn, Chairperson
NO ITEMS.

8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions ltems.

9. BOARD MATTERS

A. Policy Requiring Inclusion of Affordable Housing in Proposed
Development Projects at BART Stations.* Board requested to adopt.
(Director Mallett’s request.)

B. Board Member Reports.
{Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.)

C. Roll Call for Introductions.
{An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meefing or to requesi District staff to prepare items or reports.)

D. In Memoriam.
(An opportunity for Board members fo introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

* Attachment available 3of4



10.

1.

PUBLIC COMMENT

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A.

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION
Name of Case: Ho vs. BART, USDC Action No. C15-01128 HSG
Government Code Section:  54956.9(a)

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEIL — EXISTING LITIGATION
Name of Case: Alexander vs. BART, USDC Action No. C15-3225 HSG
Government Code Section:  54956.9(a)

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS

Property: Property Located at the Millbrac BART Station

District Negotiators: Robert Powers, Assistant General Manager, Planning &
Development; Jeffrey P. Ordway; and Sean Brooks,
Manager, Real Estate and Property Development

Negotiating Parties: Urban Republic and San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms

Government Code Section:  54956.8

12. OPEN SESSION

* Attachment available 404



DRAFT
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688
Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,744th Meeting

November 19, 2015
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held November 19, 2015, convening at
9:06 a.m. in the Board Room, 344 20™ Street, Oakland, California. President Blalock presided;
Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich,
Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent:  None. Director McPartland entered the Meeting later.

President Blalock called for a moment of silence to remember the recent bombing of a Russian
plane and the killings in Paris.

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:
1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of October 22, 2015.
2. Appointments to the Tri-Valley Regional Rail Advisory Group.

3. Revision to Board Rule 3-4.1, Agendas, and Board Rule 5-5.1,
Contractor/Subconiractor Contributions,

4, District Response to Contra Costa County Grand Jury Report.

5. Grant of Basement for the Purple Lotus Temple in the Cities of Union City
and Fremont.

0. Lease of Warehouse Space at 800 East 8th Street, Oakland.

7. Sole Source Procurement with Giesecke & Devrient Ametica, Inc., for
Upgrade of a Currency Processor and Procurement of Associated
Equipment.

8. Award of Contract No. 048F-160, Construction of East Contra Costa

BART Extension Project Antioch Station Parking Landscaping.

9. Award of Contract No. 15QH-180, Repave North Parking .ot and Access
Road — Walnut Creek.

10. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 8971, Chain, Escalator Step.

11.  Reject All Bids for Contract No. 15PJ-130, BART Earthquake Safety
Program Fruitvale Station and Coliseum Station.

-1-



DRAFT
Directors Keller and Mallett requested that Item 2-D, District Response to Contra Costa County
Grand Jury Report, be removed from Consent Calendar.

Director Murray made the following motions as a unit. Director Keller seconded the motions,
which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 8: Directors Josefowiiz, Keller, Mallett,
Murray, Raburn, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock. Noes - 0. Absent - 1: Director
McPartland.

1. That the Minutes of the Meeting of October 22, 2015, be approved.

2. That the Board ratify the appointment of Director Tom Radulovich as
representative of the Board of Directors to the Tri-Valley Regional Rail
Advisory Group, and that Director John McPartland be appointed as
alternate.

3. That the Board adopt the attached revision to Board Rule 3-4.1 Agendas
with the Rule revision to be reviewed after six months in effect; and that
the Board adopt the attached revision to Board Rule 5-5.1
Contractor/Subcontractor Contributions. (The revised Board Rules are
attached and hereby made a part of these Minutes.)

4. Adoption of Resolution No. 5303, In the Matter of Authorizing the Grant
of Easement to the Purple Lotus Temple BART Parcels: O-AB74E6
(O-AB94E6 and O-AD28E4) (Portion of APN 507-0030-014-02 and 507-
0030-018-03).

5. That the General Manager or her designee be authorized to execute a lease
agreement with East 8" Street Associates, for approximately 18,200
square feet of warchouse space at 800 East 8™ Street, Oakland, for a four-
year term, for a total lease amount, excluding gas and water, which will be
billed quarterly at a pro-rata share of usage and electricity that is metered
separately, not to exceed $489,689.40.

6. That the Board find, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20227, that
Giesecke & Devrient America, Inc., is the single source for the
procurement of equipment and services necessary to upgrade and refurbish
a currency processor and associated equipment, and that such purchase is
for the sole purpose of duplicating or replacing equipment in use; and that
the General Manager or her designee be authorized to negotiate and
execute a contract with Giesecke & Devrient America, Inc., for the
upgrade and refurbishment of one currency processor, and associated
equipment, in an amount not to exceed $750,000.00; and that the General
Manager or her designee be authorized to enter into a five-year
maintenance agreement for two currency processors in an amount not to
exceed $549,930.00. (This motion carried by the required two-thirds
vote.)

7. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 04SF-160,
for the Construction of East Contra Costa BART Extension Project
Antioch Station Parking Landscaping, to Empire Landscaping, Inc., of

2.



DRAFT
Davis, California, for the amount of $277,500.00, pursuant to notification
to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to the District’s protest
procedures.

8. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 15QH-
180, Repave North Parking Lot and Access Road, Walnut Creek Station,
_to Golden Bay Construction, Inc., for the Bid Price of $411,999.00,
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject
to compliance with the District’s protest procedures.

9. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid
No. 8971, an estimated quantity contract, for Chain, Westinghouse
Escalator Step, to Precision Escalator, Kenilworth, New Jersey, in the
amount of $130,086.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the
General Manager, and subject to compliance with the District’s protest
procedures.

(The foregoing motion was made on the basis of analysis by the staff and
certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funds are available for this purpose.)

10.  That all bids for Contract No. 15PJ-130, Earthquake Safety Program,
Fruitvale Station and Coliseum Station, be rejected, and that the General
Manager be authorized to re-advertise the Contract.

Director Radulovich moved that the Board approved the attached response to Finding #5 of the
Contra Costa County Civil Grand Jury Report 1504, Averting Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Strikes. Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by electronic vote. Ayes - 6:
Directors Josefowitz, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich, Sallzman, and Blalock. Noes —2: Directors
Keller and Mallett. Absent — 1: Director McPartland. (The response is attached and hereby
made a part of these Minutes.)

President Blalock announced that the Board would enter into closed session under item 3-A
(Conference with Labor Negotiators; Public Employee Performance Evaluation) of the Regular
Meeting agenda, and that the Board would reconvene in open session at the conclusion of the
closed session.

The Board Meeting recessed at 9:10 a.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 9:15 a.m.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich,
Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent:  None. Director McPartland entered the Meeting later.

Director McPartland entered the Meeting.



DRAFT
The Board Meeting recessed at 10:06 a.m,

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 10:10 a.m.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent: None.

President Blalock announced that there were no announcements to be made and that
Compensation and Benefits for General Manager, General Counsel, District Secretary, and
Independent Police Auditor would be continued to a future meeting.

President Blalock announced that the order of agenda items would be changed and called for
Public Comment. The following individuals addressed the Board.
Stephen Everett
Michael Rothbaum
Bernardo Montiel
Kurt Kuhwald
Sharon Fennena
Mollie Costello
Kathryn Gilje
Terry Morris

Jane Martin
Sulaiman Hyass
Bob Allen

Dennis Fagaly
Lindsay Imai Hong
Feng Kung
Rebecca Hom
Cecilia Lucas
Michelle Puckett
Kyle McCoy
Vanessa Riles
Nichola Torbett
Michael Gast
Leigh Davenport
Tova I'ry

Tristen Schmidt
Marcy Rein

Margi Clark

Allex Fuller

Prince White
Megan Swoboda
Kimberly Banford
Taina Vargas-Edmond
Jenny Crofton



DRAFT
Jill Shenker
NTanya Lee
Jerty Grace
Colleen Tani

'The Board Meeting recessed at 12:05 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 12:40 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent: None.

President Blalock brought the matter of Renaming of the Citizen Review Board to “BART Police
Citizen Review Board” before the Board. Director Raburn moved that the Citizen Review Board
be renamed the BART Police Citizen Review Board, and that the BART Citizen Oversight

Model be amended to reflect this change. Director Keller seconded the motion, which carried by
unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 9: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray,
Raburn, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock. Noes — 0.

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Commitiee, brought the matter of BART Bicycle Advisory Task Force Annual Report before the
Board. Mr. David Favello, Chairperson of the BART Bicycle Advisory Task Force, presented
the report. The report was discussed.

Jetry Grace addressed the Board,

Director Raburn brought the matter of BART Bicycle Advisory Task Force and BART
Accessibility Task Force Joint Recommendations for Improved Station Circulation before the
Board. Mr. Favello and Mr. Alan Smith, Chairperson of the BART Accessibility Task Force,
presented the item. The item was discussed.

Director Raburn brought the matter of Warm Springs/South Fremont Station West Side Access
Bridge before the Board. Mr. Robert Powers, Assistant General Manager, Planning and
Development; Mr. John Rennels, Principal Property Development Officer; Ms. Jessica von
Borck, Assistant City Manager, City of Fremont; and Mr. Norm Hughes, Public Works Director,
City of Fremont, presented the item. The item was discussed.

Director Keller, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Agreement
with Data Ticket, Inc., for Parking Citation Processing Services (Agreement No. 6M5096),
before the Board. Mr. Justin Morgan, Police Administrative Supervisor, presented the item. The
item was discussed.

Director McPartland moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Agreement
No. 6M5096 to Data Ticket, Inc., to provide parking citation processing services, for a total

5



DRAFT
compensation amount not to exceed $2,399,850.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the
General Manager.

Brook Westcott addressed the Board.

President Blalock seconded the motion. Discussion continued. The motion carried by electronic
wvote, Ayes - 6: Directors Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, and Blalock. Noes — 3;
Directors Josefowitz, Radulovich, and Saltzman.

Director Keller brought the matter of Fiscal Year 2015 Year-End Budget Revision before the
Board. Mr. Robert Umbteit, Department Manager, Budget Department, presented the item.
Director Saltzman moved adoption of Resolution No. 5304, In the Matter of Amending
Resolution No. 5262 regarding Fiscal Year 2015 Annual Budget. President Blalock seconded
the motion.

Chris Finn addressed the Board.

The motion cairied by unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 9: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett,
McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock. Noes — 0.

Director McPartland, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the
matter of Agreement with Nordco Rail Services for Ultrasonic Rail Flaw Detection Testing
(Agreement No. 6M3286) before the Board. Mr. Gregory Shivy, Principal Track Engineer,
presented the item. Director Murray moved that the General Manager be authorized to award
Agreement No. 6M3286, to Nordco Rail Services LLC, of Beacon Falls, Connecticut, for Rail
I'law Detection Testing Service, for an amount not to exceed $709,650.00, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to the District’s protest procedures.

Director McPartland brought the matter of Award of Contract No. 110G-130A, Balboa Park
Station — Phase 2, before the Board. Ms. Shirley Ng, Group Manager, Stations Engineering and
Construction, presented the item. The item was continued to a future meeting,

Director McPartland brought the matter of Award of Contract No. 15PB-120, BART Earthquake
Safety Program Aerial Structures — A Line Lake Merritt to Coliseum, before the Board.

Mr. Thomas Horton, Group Manager, Earthquake Safety Program, presented the item. President
Blalock moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 15PB-120,
Earthquake Safety Program Station Structures — A Line Lake Merritt to Coliseum, to Brosamer
& Wall, Inc., for the Bid amount of $12,958,770.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the
General Manager, and subject to the District’s protest procedures and Federal Highway
Administration’s requirements related to protest procedures. Director Murray seconded the
motion, which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 9: Directors Josefowitz, Keller,
Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock. Noes — 0.

Director McPartland brought the matter of Increase Authority to Execute Third Party
Agreements and Work Authorizations to Support the Hayward Maintenance Complex Project
before the Board. Mr. Horton, Group Manager, Hayward Maintenance Complex, presented the
item. Director Saltzman moved that the General Manager or her designee be authorized to
increase authority for an additional $750,000.00 to execute third party agreements and work
authorizations with various public and private utilities including cities, agencies, special districts,
other third parties and the Union Pacific Railroad to perform support services including, but not
-6-



. DRAFT
- limited to, design, installation, minor construction, relocation, and permit and inspection fees
required in support of the Hayward Maintenance Complex Project. Director Murray seconded
the motion, which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 9: Directors Josefowitz, Keller,
Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock. Noes — 0.

Director McPartland brought the matter of Sole Source Procurement with Dailey and Wells
Communications for Portable Radio Replacement before the Board. Mr. Thomas Herold,
Manager of Telecommunications Engineering, presented the item. Director Murray moved that
the Board find, in accordance with Public Contract Code 20227, that Dailey and Wells
Communications is the single source of supply for Harris radio equipment, the only equipment
which is compatible with the BART 800 MHz radio system, and that this procurement is for the
purpose of replacing old and outdated equipment in use at the District; and that the General
Manager be authorized to enter into direct negotiations with Dailey and Wells Communications
and to execute a contract, in a form acceptable to the General Counsel, with Dailey and Wells
Communications to provide approximately 50 units of “system™ model XG-75 portable radios
and approximately 250 units of “scan” model XG-~75 portable radios pursuant to the
requirements of Project 79LS001, for a total price not to exceed $949,801.00, including
applicable taxes. President Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by electronic vote by the
required two-thirds vote. Ayes - 9: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Mutray,
Raburn, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock. Noes — (.

Director Raburn brought the matter of Agreement with Alameda Contra Costa Transit District
(AC Transit) for Late Night Bus Core Service Enhancements on AC Transit Routes 800 and 801
before the Board. Ms. Marianna Parreiras, Access Coordinator, Transit & Shuitles, presented the
item.

Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

The item was discussed. Director Keller moved that the General Manager be authorized to
execute an agreement with AC Transit for the Late Night Bus Core Service enhancements on AC
Transit routes 800 and 801 for one year, with the plan to include up to $50,000.00 available for
marketing and with staff to return with a plan for a research study on extending the 822 route.
Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by electronic vote, Ayes - §: Directors
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Murray, Rabuin, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock. Noes — 1:
Director Mallett.

Director McPartland brought the matter of Quarterly Performance Report, First Quarter Fiscal
Year 2016 - Service Performance Review, before the Board. Mr. Paul Oversier, Assistant
General Manager — Operations; Mr. Jeffrey Lau, Chief Safety Officer; and Deputy Chief of
Police Benson Fairow presented the item. The report was discussed.

Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

President Blalock called for the General Manager’s Report. General Manager Grace Crunican
reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had participated in, reminded the
Board of upcoming events, and reported on open Roll Call for Introduction items.

President Blalock called for the Quarterly Report of the Controller/Treasurer — June 30, 2015.
Ms. Rose Poblete, Interim Controller/Treasurer, and Mr. Chris Gan, Assistant Controller,
presented the item. The report was discussed.

-7-



DRAFT
President Blalock called for Board Member Reports and Roll Call for Introductions.

Director Josefowitz requested a report detailing what of the cash and cash equivalents is
encumbered, for what liabilities or expected liabilities it is encumbered, and why the District is
holding the unencumbered cash that it is. Director Murray seconded the request.

Director McPartland reported he had attended a Veterans Day presentation with Congressman
Swalwell and Assemblymember Quirk.

Director Keller requested the creation of a Board advisory committee to provide a voice for
BART riders similar to the Rider Advisory Committee that advises the Capitol Corridor Joint
Powers Authority Board and that this item be placed on a future Board Meeting agenda.
Director Murray seconded the request, and Director Saltzman was a third supporter of the
request.

Director Raburn reported he had attended a Dia de los Muertos event at the Fruitvale Station.

Director Saltzman expanded on the General Manager’s report of the labor/management two-day
summit,

Director Saltzman requested that staff be directed to work with Capitol Corridor and Caltrain on
a better communication plan to avoid Capitol Corridor and Caltrain riders missing their trains by
seconds or minutes due to BART delays, with a memo on the plan to be provided to the Board.
Director Josetfowitz seconded the request.

Directors Mallett and Saltzman requested evaluation of options for making crowd and load data
available to the public and app developers, potentially by making SCRAM and load factor data
publicly available. This request is not asking for the data to be made available in real time.

President Blalock called for In Memoriam, and requested that the Meeting be adjourned in honor
of former Alameda County Supervisor, AC Transit Interim General Manager, and BART
Director Mary V. King.

The Board Meeting was adjourned at 4:43 p.m. in honor of Mary V. King.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



A. AD HOC COMMITTEE PROPOSED REVISIONS:

Chapter I1I Board Meetings and Committees, Section 4 Meeting Material
35. Board Rule 3-4.1 Agendas. Page III-17. Inseris proposed new language for introduction of
Roll Call for Introductions items and for placement of aw item on a future agenda.

Each regular Board meeting agenda shall contain an item entitled “Roll Call for
Introductions,” at which time each Director will be afforded an opportunity to introduce a
matter for consideration at a future Committee or Board Meeting. Requests to District
staff to prepare items or reports may also be made under this agenda item.

An item being infroduced requires a ‘second’ endorsement by another Director to be
recorded as a “Roll Call for Introductions” item. An item requested for placement on a
_ future agenda reguires g ‘third’ endorsement by a Director.

If a Director or the General Manager has a concern about a matter introduced under
“Roll Call for Introductions,” the General Manager may speak directly with the
sponsoring Director. If not resolved the Director or General Manager may have the
matter placed on the next agenda of the Board or appropriate committee for
consideration of whether to proceed with the item. A Director or the General Manager
may request that a matter raised during “Roll Call for Introductions” be placed on the
Board or committee agenda by notifying the District Secretary, either at the Board
Meeting at which the matter was introduced, or at any time up to and including the
Friday before the next meeting. When so notified, the District Secretary shall place any
such item on the next Board or committee agenda for consideration and possible action.

Chapter V Financial Provisions, Section 5 Financial Contributions Limitation
45, Board Rule 5-5.1 Contractor/Subcontractor Coniributions. Page V-12. Clarifies description
of contributor and changes terms for contributions.

In regard to any contract, or agreement requiring authorization of the Board, no

party seeking to do business with the District (hereafter
“contractor’) or the coniractor's proposed first tier subcontractors and subsuppliers
whose subcontracts exceed $100,000 (hereinafter referred to as "subcontractors”), shall
provide to any Director, or any candidate for Director, and no Director, or a candidate for
Director, shall accept or solicit any monetary or in-kind contribution valued at greater
than $1,000 (including loans) from any contractor or its subcontractors during the time
periods from the receipt of that perspective contractor's bid for all contracts and
agreements through award, and_shall_continue to apply for three months following
award in regard to the contractor awarded the contract or agreement and iis
subcontractors




'\m»r";

Response to Finding #5 of the Contra Costa County Civil Grand Jury Report 1504

F5. A multi-furisdictional transit service plan developed and initiated by the MTC Commission
during the last BART strike was insufficient to mitigate the impact of the strike. BART agrees
with this finding. BART carries approximately 100,000 round trip passengers between the east
bay and San Francisco and, in excess of 300,000 daily trips throughout the rest of the system on
an average weekday.

Other public transit agencies that provide San Francisco Bay crossing services during peak
commute hours, most notably AC Transit, increased their regular service from the east bay to
San Francisco during the last BART strike. Additional ferry service was also made available
through the efforts of MTC. In an effort to provide commuters with additional transit options to
cross the San Francisco Bay Bridge during the strike, BART was able to offer limited lifeline
private bus service to serve approximately six percent of BART's regular ridership. In order to
meet even this limited threshold, BART contracted with private bus operators from across
California to provide transbay service. To alleviate congestion to the extent possible, commuters
were encouraged to telecommute or stagger work times.

MTC’s role was primarily one of coordination to ensure seamless information flow between
agencies. MTC and BART both worked diligently to increase capacity through other modes of
transportation during the strike; however, those efforts were insufficient to fully mitigate the
impact of the sirike because the availability of resources required to do so do not exist.

November 13, 2015



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: November 25, 2015

FROM: District Secretary

SUBJECT: Removal of Term Limit for the Rescrve Fund/Risk Management Ad Hoc
Committee

At the request of the Ad Hoc Committee members, President Blalock proposes to remove the

term limit for the Reserve Fund/Risk Management Ad IHoc Committee.

Board Rule 3-3.2 requires the ratification by a majority vote of all members of the Board any

appointment of any Committce member by the Board President. The Rule includes a provision

that such appointments shall be submitted directly to the Board.

President Blalock proposes that the term limit for the Reserve Fund/Risk Management Ad Hoc

Committee be extended.

MOTION:

That the Board of Directors ratifies the removal of the term limit for the Reserve Fund/Risk
Management Ad Hoc Committee.

"y
Please contact President Blalock or me if you have any g éstiplls. Thank you.

J_

Kenneth A. Duron

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



bocy

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

W#\NA@ER M GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originatorﬁ'-'rpareby l}eidre Hoitman | Geteral-Coynsel ControlleriTrgasurer | District Secretary 7 T
Duue T s il

/ WW, 1 g{( ?
Signature/Date: //01}3'// 5 1 /2."1/{53 [ 1] il 3[ 1 [1 wghf

e N .
Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing Statement of Continued Interest for the Affordable
Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC) Program Funding in Fiscal Year (FY)
2015-2016

NARRATIVE:

Purpoese: To obtain Board approval of a Resolution authorizing submittal of a Statement of
Continued Interest for funding under the Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities
(AHSC) program.

Discussion: The AHSC Program was established in 2014 as part of the State's cap-and-trade
program to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions through projects that support affordable
housing and transportation investments near transit stations and throughout urbanized areas. The
AHSC program is managed by the state's Strategic Growth Council (SGC) and the state
Department of Housing and Community Development and funded by the state Greenhouse Gas
Reduction Fund (GGRF). In May 2015, the BART Board passed Resolution 5293 authorizing
the submittal of three applications for funding under the AHSC program for FY 2014-2015 in
partnership with local affordable housing developers. In June 2015, the SGC awarded AHSC
program funding for two of the three applications: the 12th Street/Oakland City Center Station
Project and the Hayward Meta Housing project. These projects included bicycle channels and
additional bike storage at the 12th Street station and 16 new electronic bike lockers at the
Hayward station.

On October 30, 2015, the SGC issued notification of $30 million in available {unding for FY
2015-2016 and invited specific high-scoring project applications that were not chosen for
funding in the FY 2014-2015 round of funding availability to resubmit their applications. The
rafionale by the SGC for issuing this invitation-only round of funds was that the applicants had
submitted high quality projects requiring a substantial effort in the prior application process. One
of these projects is the third of the three projects on which BART was a partner, which would
provide, in partnership with Bridge Housing Corp. for the Marea Alta joint development project,
up to $500,000 to enhance pedestrian access at the San Leandro BART station, The intent of the
access improvements is to reconnect the City of San Leandro’s street grid for pedestrians, and
improve pedestrian access across the Union Pacific Oakland Subdivision railroad tracks and the
Westlake Urban/OSI Soft office development which is currently under construction west of the
BART station.

As part of the resubmittal of the joint BART-Bridge Housing application to the SGC for funding,



As part of the resubmittal of the joint BART-Bridge Housing application to the SGC for funding,
the BART Board must adopt a resolution authorizing the submittal of a Statement of Continued
Interest for AHSC Program funding,

Fiscal Impact: None.

Alternative: Do not approve the Resolution for the Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities (AHSC) Program Funding. If that occurs, BART could forego up to $500,000 in
FY 2015-2016 AHSC funding and Bridge Housing Corp. would no longer be in a competitive
position to apply for funding, which is critical for the second phase of the joint development
project on BART property.

Recommendation: Adoption of the following motion.

Motion: The Board of Directors approves adoption of the attached Resolution authorizing
submittal of a Statement of Continued Interest to the Strategic Growth Council for funding under

the Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities program.

Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing Statement of Continued Interest for the Affordable Housing and Sustainable Con



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN FRANCISCO
BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing Statement of
Continued Interest For Funding from the
Affordable Housing And

Sustainable Communities Program (AHSC)/

Resolution No.

WHEREAS, the State of California, the Strategic Growth Council (SGC) and the Department of
Housing and Community Development (Department) issued a Notice of Funding Availability
(NOFA) dated October 30, 2015 for $30 million under the Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities (AHSC) Program established under Division 44, Part 1 of the Public Resources
Code commencing with Section 75200 and funded by auction proceeds of the Greenhouse Gas
Reduction Fund (GGRF); and

WHEREAS, the SGC, which administers the AHSC Program, is authorized to approve funding
allocations for the Program, subject to the terms and conditions of the NOFA, Program
Guidelines, Application Package, and State of California, Standard Agreement (Standard
Agreement); and

WHEREAS, the SGC has invited specific high-scoring, but ultimately unsuccessful,” project
applicants that were considered for funding in Fiscal Year 2014-2015 1o re-submit their
applications for Fiscal Year 2015-2016; and

WHEREAS, for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 SGC has invited the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District (BART) and Bridge Housing Corp. to re-submit its Joint Application from Fiscal
Year 2014-2015 for AHSC funding to build affordable housing and enhance related access
improvements at the San Leandro BART station; and

WHEREAS, the SGC requires a funding applicant invited for reconsideration to have its
governing board submif a resolution authorizing submittal of a Statement of Continued Interest
and Supplemental Information;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the BART Board of Directors that the General
Manager or her designee is hereby authorized to submit a Statement of Continued Interest and
Supplemental Information to the SGC, pursuant to the NOFA dated October 30, 2015, for re-
consideration of its joint AHSC Program application with Bridge Housing Corp. for funding to



build affordable housing and to enhance related access improvements at the San Leandro BART
station.

If the application is approved, BART’s General Manager or her designee is hereby authorized to
enter into, execute, and deliver a Standard Agreement, and any and all other documents, and all
amendments thereto (collectively, the “AHSC Documents™), required pursuant to the NOFA to
secure AHSC Program funds, in an amount not to exceed $500,000.00, subject to approval as to
form by BART’s Office of the General Counsel; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that BART shall be subject to the terms and conditions as
specified in the Standard Agreement. Funds are to be used for allowable capital asset project
expenditures. The application in full will be incorporated as part of the Standard Agreement.
Any and all activities funded, information provided, and timelines represented in the application
are enforceable through the Standard Agreement. If BART receives and accepts the funding,
BART hereby agrees to use the funds for eligible capital asset(s) in the manner presented in the
application as approved by the Department and in accordance with the NOFA and Program
Guidelines and Application Package; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this Resolution shall be (ransmitted to the
Department and the SGC.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this Day of , 2015, by the following
vote:
AYES: NAYS: ABSTAIN: ABSENT:

Certification

I, Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary, do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct
copy of a resolution passed and approved by the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District on the day of , 2013.

Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary

Date:

wi



ba

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

A Pl
ERFRAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
ﬂ, Forward to Board of Dircctors

PATE: UIOH IS (S ' BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originatof/Prephred by Greg Marrama Controlfer/T, easurer District Secretary BARC
Dept; .

Stgnature/Date: \[l?)ﬂ 19 /bfﬂ DZ/Z [ \cU‘/ ‘(ﬁs!]{

[Status: Approved o __|pate Created: 11/16/2015

HTLE:
Authorization to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with the Mineta
Transportation Institute for Workforce Development, Education, Research and Other
Services
NARRATIVE:
Purpose:
That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement
with the Mineta Transportation Institute at San Jose State University to perform specialized
services in the arcas of workforce development, education, rescarch, and other transportation
related services for a three year duration in an amount not-to-exceed $300,000.

Discussion:

The Mineta Transportation Institute (MTT) at San Jose State University was established by
Congress in 1991 and has vast expertise in an array of ransportation-related disciplines,
including cducation, training, security, finance, hazard mitigation, and transit supportive land
usc. A number of BART employces are graduates of MTI's Master of Scicnee program in
Transportation Management.

MTTs initial engagement under this Agreement is contemplated to be in the area of workforce
development. As BART replaces its legacy systems with new slate-of-the-art technology and
architecture, it is imperative that the District cstablish the curriculum necessary to train both
current and next generation BAR'T employecs to use these new technologies.  ‘This effort
becomes even more critical as the District faces the reality that approximately half of current
BART employees are eligible to retire. MT1 will bring additional expertise to the District’s
current workforce development initiative already underway.

Fiscal Impact:

Compensation for services under this Agreement will be for an estimated amount not-to-exceed
$100,000 per year for a three year period. Funding will be made available from the General -
Manager's annual operating budget. Work directives issued to MT1 will be at the General
Manager’s discretion. The Controller/T'reasurer will certify availability of such funding prior to
incurring costs against the Agreement.



Alternatives:
Not to authorize the General Manager to enter into an Agreement with MTI.

Recommendation:
Itis recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

Motion

The Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager to enter into a Professional Services
Agreement with the Mineta Transportation Institute for a three year period at a cost not-to-exceed
$300,000.

Authorization to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with the Mineta Transportation Instilute 2



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

5—'&%‘ 'BVOARD INFTIATED ITEM: No 7

ControlleriTreasurer zﬁi“:gfrictSacfet;Fy' Teare ) 4T

‘OriginatoriPteparediby: Charlotte Barham | Gerfera
Dept: Financial Planning

E i A

StatusiRouted |DateCreated: 11/1872015
TITLE:

]

Title VI Assessment for Discontinuing the BART Plus Ticket Program

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE =
To request Board approval of the “Title VI Assessment for Discontinuing the BART Plus Ticket
Program as currently Jointly Offered by BART, County Connection, Tri Delta Transit, Union
City Transit, WestCAT, and Wheels.”

DISCUSSION

To ensure compliance with federal and state civil rights regulations, BART performs an analysis
of any fare change, in this case discontinuing the BART Plus ticket, to determine if the change
has a disparate impact on minority riders or a disproportionate burden on low-income riders.

BART Plus is an intra-agency joint fare product accepted by BART and the following five bus
operators:

Bus ' Operaling Agency

County Connection Central Contra Costa Transit Authority
Tri-Delta Transit Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Union City Transit | City of Union City _

WestCAT Western Contra Costa Transit Authority
Wheels Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority

The agreement among these agencies governing the BART Plus program expires on December
31,2015, LR e e e * SAPTELS Ot LA

As the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has encouraged transit agency coordination in
undertaking Title VI requirements for joint fare products, BART and the five bus operators have
agreed that BART would undertake coordinated Title VI analysis for all BART Plus agencies.

The BART Plus ticket, good for a two-week period, is used as a flash pass for unlimited bus
rides, gives a discount of 5% to 8% for BART trips, and can be used to make a last BART trip
with as little as a nickel left on the ticket. BART Plus tickets are available in eight




denominations, ranging from $43 to $76, with $15 to $50 in BART value.

The BART Plus ticket program began in 1991 to encourage transit use and regional fare
coordination, and at one point, 10 bus operators participated, serving five counties. The BART
Plus program was intended to end once BART Plus program paticipants could accept the
regional smart card, now Clipper®. Consequently, in 2013, San Francisco Muni, Dumbarton
Express, SamTrans, and Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority withdrew because they had
become Clipper-enabled. None of the completed Title VI analyses provided to BART by the
operators had a finding of disparate impact and/or disproportionate burden.

After the four agencies withdrew, BART Plus ticket sales and ridership declined by
approximately 96%. Currently, on an average weekday, approximately 30 BART Plus trips are
taken on BART. Thus, the BART Plus ticket has ceased to be a viable regional joint bus and
BART fare product.

As County Connection, Tri Delta Transit, WestCAT and Wheels became Clipper-enabled on
November 1, 2015, and Union City Transit will be Clipper-enabled in summer 2016 (on an
average weekday, there are one exit and one entry at Union City Station by riders using a BART
Plus ticket), these agencies now wish to withdraw from the BART Plus program.

Analysis Results

An agency is to use ridership survey data when evaluating the adverse effects of fare changes.
However, sufficient survey data for BART Plus riders is not available as no BART Plus riders
responded 1o the 2014 Customer Satisfaction Survey and fewer than 20 BART Plus riders
responded-to the 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey. In the absence of sufficient survey data,
the Title VI report assumes the fare change will disproportionately impact minority and
low-income riders.

Should BART find that protected riders experience adverse effects from a fare change, BART
should take steps to avoid, minimize, or mitigate such impacts. Existing discounted fare medium
alternatives to BART Plus, all available on Clipper, include the East Bay Value Pass (a 31-day
rolling pass good on County Connection, Tri Delta, WestCAT, and Wheels), BART-to-bus fare
discounts, and BART 6.25% high value discount tickets. The discounts are also available on
existing paper fare media. The study found that these alternatives can avoid, minimize, or
mitigate adverse effects of discontinuing BART Plus because they offer equal, better or similar
fare discounts. '

Public Qutreach

BART undertook public outreach to receive input from low-income, minority, and Limited
English Proficient (LEP) riders as well as BART”s Title VI/Environmental Justice (EJ) Advisory
Committee and LEP Advisory Committee. One commenter left a voice mail noting that BART
Plus has been economical for her to use for years. While one advisory committee member
referred to the termination as “totally justified,” he felt that agencies should make additional
cfforts to ensure that current BART Plus ticket users understand their alternatives. In response,
BART staff recommends to the bus operators that during Clipper card roll-out on their systems,
they provide information on fare media alternatives to BART Plus and offer Clipper cards to

Titte VI Assessment for Discontinuing BART Plus 2



BART Plus riders. Notices that provide information on existing fare media alternatives to
BART Plus as well as BART contact information for riders to ask any questions will also remain
posted through December 2015 on 61 BART ticket vending machines that sell BART Plus
tickets. In December, BART station agents will also be provided with information on alternatives
to give customers.

Committee members also expressed concern that low-income riders and those with limited
computer access could have difficulty getting the benefits of the Clipper card discounts,
especially the Clipper BART high-value discount (an autoload product the rider pays for with
either a credit card or debit card) since low-income or LEP riders may have disproportionately
less access to a credit or debit card. In response to this concern, staff investigated how current
BART Plus riders are actually paying for their tickets and found that 49.5% are using a credit
card, 28.7% pay with a debit card, and the remaining 21.8% use cash. In addition, a computer is
not necessary to purchase the paper HVD ticket, which is sold at seven retail locations and
through the mail upon request.

Lquity Finding

An equity finding is made after considering both the fare change analysis results and public
comment received. The equity finding of this report assumes that the fare change will
disproportionately impact minority and low-income riders. While adverse impacts on Union City
bus riders may exist on a temporary six month basis, the report concludes that any
disproportionate impacts are not permanently adverse for any of the fare products because
existing fare products offer better or similar fares and fare media as BART Plus. Therefore, the
report concludes that the termination will not result in a disparate impact or disproportionate
burden on minority riders or low-income riders, respectively.

FISCAL IMPACT
Discontinuing the BART Plus program will result in an annual savings of approximately
$14,000, BART’s portion of program administration costs.

ALTERNATIVES ‘

Do not approve or defer approval of the Title VI Assessment. As the bus operators intend to
withdraw from the program, and BART cannot operate the program on its own, the program will
essentially end. Without Title VI Assessment approval, BART could be out of compliance with
federal and state civil rights regulations.

RECOMMENDATION
Approval of the following Motion,

MOTION
The BART Board of Directors approves the attached “Title VI Assessment for Discontinuing the
BART Plus Ticket Program as Jointly Offered by BART, County Connection, Tri Delta Transil,

Union City Transit, WestCAT, and Wheels.”

Title Vi Assessment for Discontinuing BART Plus ' 3



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

IBENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 777777

s

Orig"‘atoﬂp ‘bpam by Davld Wong o _,‘ S T T T T c‘)mmﬂerﬁmasumr L2 Distﬂct I-Sfecr.éiakr;:,'éaﬁ b. EoE VRS it o oY

Dept: Employee Relations m" .

|Date Created 11052015

P

Sigiaturepate; I ! {‘ s

~ Time Extension and Increase of Contract Value, A_gre_emcnt No. 6M4135
Short and Long Term Disability, Life and AD&D Insurance Services

NARRATIVE:
PURPOSE:

To obtain the Board’s approval to execute a change order to Agreemont No. 6M4135 for Shost and Long
Term Disability, and Life and AD&D Insurance Services, with the Standard Insurance Company. This
Change Order would increase the not-to-exceed amount of the Agreement from $13,728,180 to
$18,764,560 and extend the termination date of the Agreemeni from I*ebruan y 29, 2016 to February 28,
2017.

DISCUSSION:

The District’s life insurance (Life) and accidental death and dismemberment (AD&D) and disability
insurance programs provide basic coverage at no cost to employees, and the option for additional
coverage at the employee’s cost. The life insurance and long-term disability (L.TD) programs are fully
insured, while the short term disability (STD) program is self-insured. The Standard Insurance Company
provides the District’s life and LTD insurance, and also provides third-party administrative services for
the STD program .

The Board authorized award of A;:reement No. 6M4135 to the Standard Insurance Company on Febl vary
10, 20711 for a period of three years with two optional one-year extensions in an amount not to exceed
$13,728,180. The District exercised both options to extend the Agreement, and the sccond of these

_extensions will expire on February 28, 2016. In anticipation of the expiration of the Agreement, the
District is preparing to issue a Request for Proposals through its benefits broker, Keenan and Associates

. (Keen'm) A one-year extension will allow District staff and Keenan to seek prospective providers with
an éstablished record of public sector work and experience with agencies contracting with CalPERS, in
order to provide assistance in coordinating disability benefits with CalPERS benefits. Additionally,
Keenan will seck prospective providers with sufficient ltqmdaty and adm:mslratlve capacity to handle
fully insured accounts of the D;stuct $ size.

Anincrease in the total contract vaiue is necessary due to both the extension of the Agreement and to
premium increases resulting from higher than anticipated death’claims of current employees and retirees. -
The Standard exercised their option to increase the life insurance premium for the first option year based
on the increased life insurance costs, which results in an additional amount of $956,659 required to
conclude the current contract ending February 28, 2016, The estimated cost to extend the term of the




coniract for one additional year to February 28, 2017 is $4 079, 72] for a total addmonal cost of
$5,036, 380

This change order will extend the Disability and Life Insurance services for a period of twelve months,
*and increase the not-to-exceed amount of the Agreement by $5,036,380. The cost for the amended total

Agreement period of six years is not to exceed $18,764,560. The Standard Insurance Company has
agreed to continue services until the District terminates services under the proposed extended Agreement.

The Office of the General Counsel will ép_provc the Change Order as to form. |
FISCAL IMPACT:

The funding source is the General Fund and cost from the portion paid by the District is allocated to the
departments. The following chart indicates the total yearly fees categorized with the amounts paid by
employees and the Distriet.

Standard Insurance Agreement - Monthly Premiums and Service Fees

| Current 5 Year Agreement Amount $13,728,180.

Agreement Year : ' Total Spent Paid by Employee Paid by Distict
YR 1{March 2011 to Feb 2012) . $2,143,044 $592,761 $1,550,283 -
YR 2 {March 2012 to Feb 2013) _ $2,181,356 $606,711 $1,574,645
YR 3 (March 2013 to Feb 2014} | $2,252,115  $623,294 $1,628,821
YR 4 {(March 2014 to Feb 2015) . $3,990,777 $652,364 $3,338,413

YR 5 (March 2015 to Feb 2016} -Estimate $4,117,547 $708,008 $3,409,539
~ TOTAL $14,684,839 $3,183,138 . | 511,501,700 -

Requested Funds to he added for Year 5 $153,065 I - 5803,593 ‘t

Requested Funds to be added for Year 6 ' $652,755 1 $3,426,966

Total Fund Request | $5036380 |

] Updateed - 6 Year Agreement Not to Exceed |, $18,764,560

ALTERNATIVE:
- The Board could decline to approve an extension of the Agreement, or could approve a shorter time

extension than requested with funding reduced accordingly. However, a minimum of one-year is needed
to prepare and complete a new RF P and award a new agreement for Short and Long-Term Disability and

Time Extension and Increase of Contract Value, Agreement No. 6M4135 : _ 2



Life Insurance services.

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt the following motion:

MOTION:

‘That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Changé Order to Agreement No. 6M4135 to
extend the term of the Agreement to February 28, 2017 and increase the total compensation to an amount

not to exceed $18,764,560. '

Time Extension and Increase of Contract Value, Agreement No. 6M4135 i 3



EXEGUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

Award of Contract No. IIOG 130A Construction of BART Balboa Park Statzon East Slde
' Connectlon Improvements Phase 2

NARRATEVE

PURPOSE “To obtam the Board‘s author;zatlon for the (Jenera,l Manag,er to award Contract No.

. 110G-130A BART Balboa Park Statlon East Sldo Connecuon Improvements Phase 2, to Pr oven
o Management Inc of Berkeiey, CA. : _

- DlSCUSSI()N ThlS is the second phase of the proposed work to connect the new BART Balboa
Park Station Fastside plaza entrance with a San.Francisco Municipal Transit Agency ("MUNI")
boarding area on the cast side of the BART Station, while updating the existing Station
architecture to suit its new role asa rnaj or entrance w1th 1mproved hghnng and access on thc

- concourse leve]

Contract No IIOG—IBOA will modernize BART'S Balboa Park Statlon and consists of a basc .
- Contract and four Option items, which the District could: exercise, subject to availability of
_ fundlng, "The base Contract scope of work will connect the west side walkway to the new east
. side walkway and San Francisco MUNI's train platform and includes construction of a new east
~ side glazed head house over the north entrance. The Option items for Balboa Park Station
“improvements include, among other things, new lighting, ceiling treatment, wall finishes and a 5
- foot high separatlon barrier between the free and paid areas. The D1strlct has 320 Days from the
Not;ce to Proceed to exercise the Optlon 1tems : :

On Septcmber 3,2015, thc Advancc Notice to Bidders was maﬂcd to 125 prospectlvc Bldders, _ .

- and Contract Documents were sent o 20 plan rooms. - The Contract was advertised on September—- -

11,2015 in local publications, A total of 10 firms putchased copies of the Contract Documents.

A pre-Bid meeting and site tour was conducted on September 16, 2015, with five prospective
Bidders attending. One Addenda was issued on October 9, 2015. Bids were publicly opened on
Octobcr 20, 2015. Pursuant to the Insiructions to Bidders, Bids were to be evaluated based on
the Total Bid Price for the Base Bid (Items 1 throufvh 26 1nclusrvc) The Bids recelved and the -
Engmeer s Estimate are shown below: :

_'BIDD’ER . LOCATION _ BASEBID OPTIONS BASEBID
T o R T "~ &OPTIONS




Atz Builders, Inc. ~ Novato, CA $6.250397  $3,309.829  § 9560226

Thompson Builders Corp. ~ Novato, CA $8,189,300  $2,717.900  $10,907,200

Rodan Builders, Inc. . '.'Bur‘lingame, CA'_ . $8,454,000  $2,069,000  $10,523,000 B
Proven Management Inc.  Berkeley, CA - $8,762,000 $3,890,000_ $12,652,000_ _
- _‘__gmeersEstlmate' 89,145,016 : $2 804, 466 $11'949 482_

o The apparent low Blddez Arniz Bm}ders Inc. (Arntz) requested to be relreved ef its Bid on

October 22, 2015 for clerical errors. Based on a review by staff, the request from Arntz was
found to meet the terms of the Contract and State Codes to be relieved of its Bid due to a
mistake. - The next apparent low Bidder's Total Base Bid was submitted by Thompson Builders

* Corp. (Thompson). After review by District staff, the Bid submitted by Thompson has been

deemed to be non-responsive to the solicitation due to failure to properly complete the mandatory
Statement of Qualifications and Business References for Construction. The next apparent low
Bidder's Total Base Bid was submitted by Rodan Builders, Inc. (Rodan). After review by

District staff, the Bid submitted by Rodan has been deemed to be non-responsive to the .

solicitation due to failure to properly compiete the mandatory Designation of Subcontractors and ) .. 5 |
M/WBE Participation Form. The next apparent low Bidder's Total Base Bid was submitted by
'Proven Management Inc. (Proven). After review by District staff, Pr oven's Bid was determined

fo be responsive to the solicitation. Examination of Proven’s business experience and financial

‘capabilities has resulted in a determination that the Bidder is 1esponsxble and its Total Base Brd
o $8, 762 000 is fan and reasonable . :

Staff has determmed that this actlon mvelvmg safety and publrc access 1mp10vements along, |

- with other minor repairs and modifications to an existing facility, is exempt from the
requirements of the California Environmental Qualrty Act (CEQA) as prov1ded in CEQA
_ (Jurdchnes Sectlens 15301 (c) and (e) .

) Pursuant to the Drstrrct s Non-—Drscrlmmanon Program for Subcontractmg, the Avarlablhty

percentages for this Contract are 23% for Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs) and 12% for

- Women Business Enterprises (WBI:S) The Bidder committed to 8.7% MBE and 9.4% WBE. -

The Office of Civil Rights has determined that Proven did not meet either the MBE or WBE

“Availability Percentages. As such, Proven was requlred to provide the District with information
to determine if they had discriminated on the basis of race and g gender. Based on the review of

the information _submltted by the Brdder the Ofﬁce of Civil Rights found no evrdence of

“diserimination,

Pursuant to the District’s Nen Federal Small Busmess Program the Office of le Raghts set a
5% Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses certified by the.

“California Department of General Services (DGS). It was determined that there were no certified
‘Small Businesses certified by the DGS among the responsrble Bidders and therefore the Small
_ _Busmess Prrme Preference isno apphcable : S

Contract No. 110G-130A, Construction of BART Balboa Park Station East Side Connection Improvements Phase 2



o FISCAL IMPACT:

I*undmg, > of $8 762 000. 00 is included in the total budget for Pro;eet 110G001 - Balboa Park ©
- Station East Side Improvements. The Ofﬁee of the Contrel]er/Tleasurel certrﬁes that funds are -: '
: currentiy avar]able to meet this Obhgatzon » o -

The fell()ng tabie deplcts fundm'g assigned to the referenced project since March 2011, and is”

included in totality to track funding history against spendmr., authority. Funds needed to meet this

' request w111 be. expended from a combination of these sources as hsted

- State Prop1 B-PTMISEA (535A, 535X) -$10,958,610.00.|
State Transp Assistance Lifeline SF Sl $747,440.00
Local SECTA-Proposition K (6703 6704) o $2,230,000.00

' Grand Tetal . . _ . $ 13 936 050 00

“As of November 6,2015, $13, 936 050 00 is the total budget for this project. BART has
expended $2 393,083.13, and has committed $168, 080.65 to date for other actions, This action-

- will commit $8,762,000. 00, thus Ieavmg, an avarlable balance of $2,612,886. 22 remammg in -
fund resources for thzs prejeet '

The four Optrons wrll only be exerelsed subject to future eertlﬁcatmn by the Controiler/Treasurer o
that fundmgD is avallabie o . _ .

There is no ﬁseal 1mpact on avarlable unmprogrammed Drstriet Reserves

ALTERNATIVE The Board may deelme to authorize award of the Contraet in whleh case
~ the balance of the remaining grants may need to be canceled. Insuch a case, BART's Balboa
Park Station would remain in its current condition. If the Contract is not awarded, BART may
lose its opportunity to access the MUNI yard for future BART work in the east side as MUNI’s
current construction contracts would be completed. BART may also forfeit the fundmg for 1he
- prOJect due to timeliness of expendnures prior to explratlon ' :

RIE COMMENDATI()N It is reeommended that the Beard adept the followmg motron

s -MGTION --------- The General Manager is authorrzed 10 award Contract No: IIOG 130A;-

- Construction of BART Balboa Park Station East Side Connection Improvements Phase 2 to

Proven Management, Inc. for the Bid price of $8,762,000.00 pursuant to netzﬁcat:on o be zssued
’oy the Gene1a1 Manager and subjeet to the District's protest procedures c :

T he Generai Manager is further authorrzed fo exercise the four Optrons fora combmed tota] of
$3 890 000.00, subjeet to fundmg availability,. ' '

Contract No. 110G-130A, Construction of BART Balboa Park Station East Side Connection Improvements Phase 2



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMERT

GENERAL WANAGER ACTION REQD:

et

Originator/Pr aré'&‘ﬂy:"ziéﬁn&/

D_e:pt Stat_l.ol.'ns PD8C M vV D@ ‘ﬁw ’

| BOARD INTIATED ITEM: No

“Con_trollerITre_?_i_éurer 7 -Dl_st-r"i_c":_t"§“a'§|3‘§ié}§

L Ny i . PN
| signatwretpate: | W2 ST ] ‘1/2’5 ‘5[11016 n{?‘] [ I O I B K 99 A8\ \
[Status: Approved . |Date Created: 11/02/2015
Award of Agreement Nos. 6M8098A, 6M8099 and 6M8100, Detailed Station Cleaning
Services
NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE: To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award separale
Techuical Services Agreements to provide detailed station cleaning services as follows:
Agreement No. 6MB098A to Aim fo Please J anitorial Services, Inc.; Agreement No. 6M8099 1o
Zero Waste Solutions; and Agreement No. 6M8100 to Bay Area Green Solutions in an amount
not to exceed $700,000 for cach Agreement for a term not to exceed three (3) years.

DISCUSSION: Request for Proposal (REP) No. 6MBO9BA is one of the first RFPs posted on the
District's newly launched Procurement Portal, to solicit companies to provide Detailed Station
Cleaning Services. The District intends to award (hree (3) Agreements resulting from this RI‘P
to three (3) Contractors to perform the scope of services described in the REP which will be
assigned on a work plan basis describing specific cleaning to be performed at selected BART
stations. The scope of work to be performed under these contracts is consistent with the March
11, 2014 Agreement between the District and Service Employees International Union (SEIU)
Local 1021 regarding the contracting out of certain elements of station cleaning under the
District's Barly Wins Project.

Advance Notice to Proposers was sent on October 1, 2015, to fifty-eight (58) prospective
proposers. RFP No. 6M809BA was advertised on October 1, 2015 in local newspapers. The
RFP was also posted onio the District’s new Procurement Portal on October 1, 2015, Prospective
Proposers were required to be registered on the BART Procurement Portal and to download the
Solicitation Documents on line in order to be listed as On-Line Planholders for this solicitation in
order to be eligible for award of this Agreement. Twenty (20) prospective proposers downloaded
this RFP from the Procurement Portal. A Pre-Proposal Conference was held on October 12,
2015 and was attended by representatives from twenty-four (24) companies. One (1) Addendum
was issued for the RI'P on October 15, 2015.

On October 27, 2015, five (5) proposals were received from the following companies:
1. Zero Waste Solutions Inc., Concord, CA

2. Impec Group, Santa Clara, CA
3. Aim to Please Janitorial Services, Inc., San Francisco, CA



4. Filmex Building Maintenance, Pacifica, CA
5. Bay Area Green Soluftons, San _Bruno,'CA- _

The five (5)_ proposalé wete first reviewed for _responsivenés‘s by a Source Selection Committee
(the "Committee") consisting of staff from the District's Office of Civil Rights, Procurement and

' Planniﬂg? Development and Construction. -All five (5) proposals were determined to. be:- e

résponsive. to the requirements of the RFP. All five (5) proposals were also determined to be
‘Small Businesses certified by the California Department of General Services, ' I

The technical -proposals were th_én-reviewed and évaluated by the Committee to determine which’ |

 proposals met the minimum technical requirement of the RFP. Of the five (5) proposals that

were evaluated; two (2) proposals were determined to have not met the technical requirements of B

the REP as follows:
Sl Irﬁpéc-(}roup: Failed 10 submit a Statement of Qualifications and Business References.
2. Filmex Building Maintenance: Failed to provide sufficient evidence to have been

. determined to meet the minimum technical requirements of the RFP.

- '_'Pric'e prOpdsais from the remaining th‘rée proposers whose proposals met the minimum technical -
_ requirements .of the RFP. were then opened, evaluated and discussed. In accordance with the
" RFP, the selection of a Company to.provide Detail Station Cleaning'is based on the lowest-priced _

" techriically acceptable proposal methodology. According to the tetms of the REP, each of the

" three (3) Proposers who submitted the three (3) lowest-priced technically acoéptablé'.pi‘oposa}s
~will be selected for award of an Agreement for an amount not to ¢xceed $700,000.00, The
proposed prices reflect a summation of the total hours estimated by the District at each County
and multiplied by the Contractor's unit rate per hour. T hese prices were provided for purposes of
comparison-of the proposals received but were not intended to define the actual scope of work to.
. be performed under the awarded Agreements. These are each Jimited io an amount not to exceed -
- $700,000.. _-The Contractor's unit. rate includes - labor, malerials, equipment, insul"‘ahcc and
~{ransportatiorL. “Staff's cVaiuation determined that the proposer's unit rates are fair and reasonable.
Three téchnically acceptable proposals are summarized as follows: : S

PROPOSERS -~ | TOTALPROPOSED "AGREEMENT NUMBER
R | PRICE R A 5
AIM TO PLEASE - $1,617,000.00 o 6MB098A o TR
CJANITORIAL | o e
ZERO WASTE $2,391,081.00 S| 6M8099
SOLUTIONS, INC. B | B R
"BAY AREA GREEN | $2,737,958.000 = | 6M8I00

- | SOLUTIONS
Three contracts will be executed to créate a pool of Contractors to perform work as required.

" The work will be implemented through individual work plans negotiated with the Contractor 1o
~ensure that the price proposed for a work plan is fair and reasonable, In the event a fair and

pward of Agreement Nos. GM8098A, 6M8099 and 6M8100, Detailed Station Cleaning Services 2



' masondblc price is not reached wﬂh one. Contl actor staff w11i enter into nogohatlons with thc'- s
© next avallable (,ontlactm for that SCOpL of work. : :

o _- Pursuam to the Dzstﬂct’s NOB—D]SCﬂm}ﬂaUOH Program for buboontldctmg, the Availability

Percentages for this Contract are 16% for Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs)} and 20% - for - |

- Women . Business Enterprises (WBEs). Proposers Zero Wasle Solutions and Bay Area Green =

_ Solutions will not be subcontracting any portion of the Work and thereforé, the provisions of the
: -D1smct S Non DiSOI 1mmation Program for Su‘ocontractmg do not apply to lhos'c Conhacts ' '

_ Axm {0 Plcase Jan1tor1al Seivmes Inc. oommittod to 100% MBE and 0% WBE. The PlOpOSGI’ e
- did not meet the WBE Avaﬂablhty Percentage; therefore, the Bidder was requested fo provide

“the District with information to determine if it had discriminated on the basis of gender. Based
on the review of the information submitted by the Bidder, the (}fﬁoc oi (,1\!11 Rights found no
ewdenco of dlscnmma’uon ' : : o

o Puz suant to the District’s Non- Fodera 1 Small Business Program, the Ofﬁce of Cwﬂ Rights sot a
5% prime preference for this Contract for Small Businesses certificd by the California

Department of General Services. All th1 ce Proposers. are certified Small Businesses, thus mdkmg :
~ them eligible for the preference. Since all three Proposets are eligible for the 5% Small Business

' Pume Preference, the apphca.t}on of ihe Prime P] efcrcncc, will not alter tho award to the {"ums o

' F!SCAL IMPACT Ag,rcemcnl Nos. 6M8098A 6M8099 and 61\/18100 h(w(, a not-to- exceed cost

limit of $700, 000.00 each. The District's financial obligations under cach Agreement willbe

sub}ect 1o Woik Plans (WPs). Each WP will have a defined scope of services and separate

schedule and budget. WP's will be appr oved only if the Bud;:,et Department certifies the

) Lllglbﬂlty of identified fundmg sources. The Controller/Treasurer will also need to cerlify - -
availability of funding prior to execution of each WP Cun ontly, %550 000 (01 19 avallab]e undel

thc, 1’Y16 btatzon Refresh- ]?xpansmn pr03<:01 :

. AL I ERNATIVl* Iha, Dlstrlct could roject all Proposals and solicit new Pr oposals or awald to
fewer than the recommended three (3) Proposers. This could adversely 1mpact thc Dlstnot s
"ablhty to prowdo ncoded dctaﬂed cleamng al BART btatlons

3 RF(,OMMENDA ) ION I 1s recommended that the Bocud adopi the followmg motlon

.'MOTION The Gencral Managol 18 authon?ed to dward the foilowmg Technlcal Scrvme% -

Agreements to provide detailed station cleaning services as follows: Agreement No. 6M8U98A
to'Aim to Please Janitorial Services, Inc.; ; Agreement No, 6M8099 to Zero Waste Solutions; and
Agreement No. 6M81001o Bay Area Gru,n Solutions in an amount not 1o exceed $700,000 for
cach Agrccment for a term not {o e,xu,ed three (3) years (or to completion date of any work plan
- issued within such three-year period, if later), pursuant to notification to be issued by the General

Mdnagel and %ubj ect to the District’ s protest procedures

Award of Agreement Nos. GMSOQSA. 6M8099 and 6M8100, Detailed Station Cleaning Services -3



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL HANAGER ACTION REQH: -

= Approve and fonvard to !he Board of. I)lrccmrs for
~ JAction n

“’”E HIJ"HS .U ' e Bomnmlmmnirég“ﬂo _ -

- | : &W@mw Oigamw T Confrollerf]; er WW/ .
 Lsuomuoone ulsxlr5@’ Ve (1 {W gy

o AUTHORITY TO IMPLEMEN’I‘ A DEQIGN«BU] LD PR()CFSS I‘ OR PROCURFM!LNT
o (}F A COMMUN!CATION BASED TRAIN CONTR()L QYSI EM

NARRATNE

' :PURPOSE

o obtam Board auﬁ;onzahon for the Gencral Managcr tu issue sohcltahon documents for a .

: (‘ommzmtcatmn ‘Based Train Control ((,BTC) system using the dcs:gn—bmid methnd of :
3 pr(}curemem purwam o Pubh«: Contraci Code becuon 21 66 et_@gg : : .

BACK(‘RO UND

e In 2{314 tha Baand was bnefed on the Gem.rai Mdndger 5 mtention to lmplement CBTC as ﬂlc .
. -ncw method of train control on the BART system, based on consensus reached by a technology' -

- evaluation commitiee consmmg of approximately 40 BART staff and congultants, “The CBTC -

: “system will replace the current fixed-block train control system, which has been BART’S method

- of train control since the commencement of revenue service over forty years ago. Fixed-block

technology is based on traditional signal and track circuit equipment to control frain movement
~ and relies on widely spaced signal blocks 1o denote train occupancy. This contributes to longer
'dtstdnces belween trains, and ‘increased travel’ times and hcadways CBTC technology uses

= -commumcatmns eqmpment to more accurately detect a train’s iocallon, leadmg to more effiment
frain movement,: mcreased reimbxhty, less travel time, shorter distances between trains, and

~decreased headways. These improvements are consistent with the overall goals of the Tfam
" Control Modemization Program (Program): to achicve a state of good repair, to increase core

. System_ passenger-canymg capamty, arid to :mprove tram control system rchabxhiy, ava:lahlhty,_;,, | i

N and malntamainllty

DISCUS‘%!ON ’

: gtﬁff llas cons;dered two pcsszblc procuremem methods for obtammg a CB’I‘(‘ system
o Compemwe Negotlatwn iollowed by l’ubln: Works C‘ontract

. _Om patem:za} method is to procure the dCSlgﬁ supply and on~h0ard mstailatmn of spemahzed



- AUTHORITY TO IMPLEMENT A DESIGN-BUILD PROCESS FOR THE CBTC SYSTEM

iram centmi equipment usmg a compctﬁwe ncgouaimn process authonzed under Public C(mu act _

- Code Section 20229.1 et seq., followed by a competitively bid (fow bid) contract for the public e
works portion of the CBTC system, which consists of m‘i‘idilﬁilﬂﬂ of ways;de eqmpment .

' (equzpment not msialied On-board)

_ Procurcment of specmhzs.d equlpment by competmvc negouatmn has b@en used by BAR'I fmr a: e g
- number of projects, including. the purchase of new rail vehicles and automatic fare colicctmn_- REE

. _'(AFC) equipment.  Both of those procuremeﬂls 1equmed the suppiler io design the equipment e

based on. perfonnance spemﬁcaﬁons and to supply such equipment, and aliowed BART fo - _: :
.&.onmder factors other than price in cva[uatmg proposals an(l making an award. The rail vehlcle R
- purchase did not require an ancillary public works contract. The ancnllary pubhc works contract -

" required to install the new AFC equipment compnsaci basic work such as pmpelly sizing and -
- leveling spaces into - which the equipment could be inserted and plugged in. By contrast;

- . installation of even the Simplest wayside CBTC equipment wifl have a crucial impact on the

' performance of the CBTC system as a- whole. It is expected that numerous adjustments will have

1o be made hetwccn on-board and wayside equipment in order to. maximize system performance,

Such coordination would be very difficult if there were one contractor responsible for designing -

~and eupplymg all CBTC equipment (mcludmg waymde eqmpmeni) as 'well as installing on-board -

B equipment, and another contractor- tesponsible only for installing wayside equipment. T

- - addition; imblhty for failures in performance would be difficult to determine between the
- contractors. - Therefore, - staff has concluded that a procurement of CBTC equipment by

‘competitive neg,otsanon under Public Contract Code Section 20229.1, fo]lowed by a public worl\s e
Loniraci fur ways;de c,qzupmeni m.sldilatzon is not feambie Cn _ . .

: I)esngn—!im!d Methe)d of Pmmrement

o -Cahforma Pubhc Conlract (‘(}de Sectwn 22160 et wgg cffectwe Jamrary I, 2015 (Senate Bilt
785), provides general amhonzatmn for desngn—-bunid prolcct delivery, usmg a best value

- procurement methodology, to local agencies (including transit districts) that have | repnrted o

 benefits from such projects, including reduued project costs, expeditcd project completion, and

o _.1mplementatmn of design features that are not achicvable through the traditional desig gbbzd»buzid

_method.” The new law is substantially similar fo design-build_statutes applicable to BART
© . projects whlch commenced prior to 2015; the prlmary reason for the new. iaw was to provxde
umformxiy n dﬁb] gn—bulld pmt,urcment rcqmmmnts for v.mous pubhc, eniltu,s :

i Gwen thc mfeasxh;hly of the. compeut;ve negot;anon plus pubhc works waysxde mstallalmn'_'_

- pmcuremcﬁt 1pprcach for CBTC, thie only viable procurcmiciit methed is one in which this” CBTC R ot

 system dcslg,ner, supplier, and on-board installer i is also responsible for wayside installation. . To

- achieve that objective, a design-build method of procurement must be utilized. This ‘would

ensure - a single point of responsibility for the design, supply, installation, testing, and
.cemmlssmnmg, » of equipment.- Dividing contractor responmblhty for such an 1mportant systcm as
4 _LB 1C would sub;ect BARI o unacceptable rlsk : : '

.:' Another feason to use thc dﬁ’:Sigﬁ-bllild method of pmcuremem fora CBTC system is ihai: it wﬂl _
aiiow ihe sdected suppher, who wishes io’ carefuily safegumd liq propﬂelmy demgns and



AUTHORITY TO IMPLEMENT A DESIGN-BUH.D PROCESS FOR THE CBTC SYSTEM

operating soflware, to sclect its subcontractor for wayside installation. Presumably the supplier
would select a subcontractor with whom it has had a successful installation experience. By
conirast, under a competitive negotiation pursuant (o Public Contraci Code Seciion 20229.1
followed by a public works contract for wayside installation, the supplier would have no choice
in the selection of the installation contractor. The responsive low bidder for such public works
contract would install the supplier’s system based on detailed specifications prepared for BART
by the supplier under the competitively negotiated procurement contract. The supplier would
supervise the installation of its equipment by the public works contractor. While the public works
coniracior would be contracinally required fo protect the proprietary information of the suppher,
the supplier could perceive a greater risk of inadvertent disclosure of its proprietary information
by a public works contractor with whom the supplier has not worked. Under the design-build
method of procurement, the single contractor will select the installation contractor as part of iis
tecam and be wholly responsible for ensuring that the installed CBTC system works properly.

The design-butld method of procurement for CBTC may not necessarily result in reduced project
costs or expedited project completion when compared to a competitive negotiation plus public
works contract for wayside installation. However, it can be assumed that there would be
significant costs and time spent on resolving problems between the two contractors if an installed
CBTC system did not work properly. For example, even with proven CBTC equipment, it is
expected that many adjustments will have to be made to wayside radio equipment avound
BART’s track way to ensure continuous communication between the vehicles and wayside.

The design-build procurement process will start with the issuance of a Request for Qualifications
(RFQ) in order to pre-qualify a short list of enfities. The short-listed entities will be invited to
submit competiiive sealed proposals in response i a Request for Proposals (RFP). At a
mimmum, the RFP will include the basic scope of the Program, the estimated cost of the
Program, identification of best value as the selection methed, significant factors in evaluating
proposals and the relative importance of such factors. BART will reserve the right to request
revisions to proposals and hold negotiations with responsive proposers, pursnant {0 proceduores
set forth in the RFP. in evaluating proposals, staiT will consider, at a minimum, price, technical
design and construction expertise, and life cycle costs over 15 or more years. When the
cvaluation is complete, staff’ will rank responsive proposals based on a determination of value
provided. A recommendation will be made to the Board for an award of the contract to the
responsible design-build entity whose responsive proposal is determined to have offered the best
value to the public.

BART staft will prepare solicitation documents in compliance with all applicable State and
federal laws and FTA requirements, including Buy America requirements for train control
equipment, which is considered rolling stock for compliance purposes. The Office of Civil
Rights, in conjunction with Program staff, will develop a DBE goal and outreach plan based on
the public works installation clement of the proposed single contract.

The Train Conirol Modernization Program for the design, supply, and installation of a CBTC
System (Project) is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to
Public Resources Code Section 21080(b){(10) which is a sialutory exemption for projects that



AUTHORITY TO WIPLEMENT A DESIGN-BUILD PRQCESS FOR THE CBTC_ SYSTEM

incrcase pdsscngcr or commutcr scrwccs on rail rights of way alrcady m use.
The General Counsel w;ll approve all mhcnatmn documcm% as to form.

FISCAL I_MPAC.T

~This action has no immediate or direct fiscal impact, other than staff and consultant costs (o
~ prepare solicitation documents and engage in the qualifications and proposal evaluation prot,.em '
- The Board wﬂi be requested to duthonzc award of the destgnwbmid contract under a separate
action. : .

‘ALTERNATWES

The aliernative to conducting this procurement ihrough the design-build process would be to
obtain the design, supply and on-board installation of the train control equipment through the

~competitive ne,g,ot:dtlon process authorized by Public Contract Code Section 20229.1 et se seq., and
" to obtain the installation of wayside equipment through a compefitively bid public works -

contract. As discussed earlier, this dual procurement method would expose BART ‘to

unacceptable risk bEC¢llle thert, wouid be no mng]e contractor responslble for a working CBTC
bystem

RECOMMFNDAT]ON

Teis recommended the Board adopi the fo]lowmg manon
MOTION N

Appmves the Train Contml Modemiz:anﬁn Program for the design, supp}y, and installation of a _
Communication Based Train Control (CBTC) System (Project) and authorizes the General
Manager to proceed with implementation actions, including the issuance of solicitation

* documents for the des:gn, supply and installation of a CBTC system using the demgmhmld

method of precuremem pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 22160 et §§g_




Title VI Assessment for Discontinuing the
BART Plus Ticket Program as Jointly Offered
by:

- BART
County Connection
Tri Delta Transit
Union City Transit
WestCAT
Wheels

Assessment Prepared by the San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit District

November 18, 2015





EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To ensure compliance with federal and state civil rights regulations, including but not
limited to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and FTA Circular 4702.1B [dated
October 1, 2012 (Circular)], a transit agency performs an analysis of any fare change to
determine if the change has a disparate impact on minority riders or a disproportionate
burden on low-income riders. In accordance with the Circular, the transit agency makes
this determination by comparing the analysis results against a threshold, as defined in its
Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy.

The fare change discussed in this report is the discontinuation of the BART Plus ticket,
which is an intra-agency joint fare product accepted by BART and the following five bus
operators:

The agreement among these agencies governing the BART Plus program expires on
December 31, 2015.

As the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has encouraged transit agency coordination
in undertaking Title VI requirements for joint fare products, BART and the five bus
operators have agreed that BART would undertake coordinated Title VI analysis for all
BART Plus agencies. This report uses FTA-approved methodology to access the effects
of a fare type change; draws on data from BART ridership surveys and BART automated
fare collection equipment; and includes public outreach undertaken in accordance with
BART’s Public Participation Plan to receive public input on discontinuing the BART Plus
ticket from low-income, minority, and limited-English-proficient (LEP) riders.

The BART Plus ticket, good for a two-week period, is used as a flash pass for unlimited
bus rides, gives a discount of 5% to 8% for BART trips, and can be used to make a last
BART trip with as little as a nickel left on the ticket. BART Plus tickets are available in
eight denominations, ranging from $43 to $76.

The BART Plus ticket program began in 1991 to encourage transit use and respond to the
objectives of SB 602 (California Government Code Section 66516) regarding regional
fare coordination, which is under the purview of the Metropolitan Transportation
Commission (MTC). The BART Plus program was intended to end once the regional
smart card Clipper®, formerly known as TransLink®, became operational on the various
BART Plus program participants’ systems. Clipper® provides regional fare coordination
as one fare medium good on multiple systems, automatically providing applicable transfer
discounts. In 2003, AC Transit withdrew from the program for financial reasons. In
2013, San Francisco Muni, Dumbarton Express, SamTrans, and Santa Clara Valley
Transportation Authority ended their participation because they had become Clipper-
enabled. As the four operators chose to withdraw from the program, each of them was





responsible for performing its own Title VI analysis of the impact of terminating
participation. None of the completed Title VI analyses provided to BART found a
disparate impact and/or disproportionate burden resulting from withdrawing from the
BART Plus program.

After the withdrawal of the four agencies in 2013, BART Plus ticket sales and ridership
declined by approximately 96%. Annual ticket sales dropped from about 43,000 tickets in
FY 12 to about 1,500 tickets in FY15 (19% of which were never used on BART). BART
Plus trips on BART (bus operators do not record BART Plus trips) declined from over
250,000 in FY12 to fewer than 10,000 trips out of BART’s 126 million trips in FY15.
Currently, on an average weekday, approximately 30 BART Plus trips are taken on
BART.

Circular Chap. IV-19 states that an agency shall analyze any available information from
ridership surveys when evaluating the adverse effects of fare changes. BART’s most
recent ridership survey conducted in 2014 does not include any BART Plus rider
respondents. The next most recent survey, the 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey,
includes responses from 14 BART Plus riders reporting ethnicity and 11 BART Plus
riders reporting income. These sample sizes are too small to be statistically representative
of all BART Plus riders, and public outreach undertaken as part of the current analysis
resulted in six surveys completed, two of which were from current BART Plus riders, one
of whom identified as minority and non-low income and the other as nonprotected. In the
absence of sufficient survey data, this report assumes the fare change will
disproportionately impact minority and low-income riders, i.e., that BART Plus riders are
predominately minority or low-income.

This report concludes that existing fare product alternatives avoid, minimize, or mitigate
adverse effects of BART Plus termination. The existing discounted fare medium
alternatives to BART Plus include the East Bay Value Pass, BART-to-bus fare discounts,
and BART 6.25% high value discount tickets. These products are all available on one
regional smart card, Clipper’, thus replicating BART Plus ticket functionality as a single
fare medium accepted on both buses and BART. The alternatives are also available on
existing paper fare media. Depending on how individual riders currently use the BART
Plus ticket to take different combinations of bus and BART trips, these alternatives would
avoid, minimize, or mitigate the impact of no longer having the BART Plus ticket."

The following information supports a conclusion that ending the program is justified:

e BART Plus participant bus operators will be Clipper-operational and the ticket
program from its inception was designed to end once the regional smart card
became available to riders’.

e The BART Plus ticket no longer serves its intended function as a regional joint bus
and BART fare product.

! Data is not available that indicates there is a BART Plus rider who uses both Union City Transit and one or more of the four bus
operators who accept the East Bay Value Pass (BART’s Union City Station serves an average of one to two BART Plu_s trips per day).
If there is such a rider who takes Union City Transit and another bus operator, depending on their travel pattems, that rider could pay

more than with BART Plus. o »
2 Four of the five BART Plus bus operators became Clipper-enabled effective November 1, 2015, and the remaining operator, Union

City Transit, will be Clipper-enabled by summer 2016. BART s Union City Station serves an average of one to two BART Plus trips
per day.

2





As part of the Title VI assessment, BART has undertaken public outreach to receive
public input on discontinuing the BART Plus ticket from low-income, minority, and LEP
populations, in accordance with BART’s Public Participation Plan, completed in May
2010 and revised in July 2011, and the Circular. Given that BART Plus riders represent
just 0.007% of all daily BART riders, reaching BART Plus riders was difficult and
challenging. Staff worked with the participating bus operators, canvassed bus riders in
stations and analyzed actual BART Plus ridership trends to reach as many riders as
possible.

No comments were received from BART Plus riders regarding the fare change’s impact
on minority riders. The Title VI/Environmental Justice Advisory Committee and the
Limited English Proficiency Advisory Committee also did not have comments on the fare
change as it related to minority riders.

One voice mail was left by a commenter who noted that BART Plus has been economical
for her to use for years. At May 2015 meetings of the Title VI/Environmental Justice
Advisory Committee and the Limited English Proficiency Advisory Committee, who also
represent BART’s low-income riders, committee members asked about options available
for BART Plus riders using Clipper, and this report includes a description of these
alternatives. On October 20, 2015, a joint meeting of the two advisory committees was
held at which staff presented Title VI analysis preliminary findings. Committee members
noted that the preliminary findings supported terminating the BART Plus program, with
one member referring to the termination as “totally justified.” While this one member
acknowledged and understood the reasons behind the termination of the program, he felt
that current BART Plus ticket users should understand what their alternatives are. In
addition, members expressed concern that low-income riders and those with limited
computer access could have difficulty getting the benefits of the Clipper card discounts,
especially the Clipper BART high-value discount (HVD), which is an autoload product
for which the rider pays with either a credit card or a debit card. Committee members
noted that low-income and LEP riders may be less likely to have a credit or debit card. In
response to the concern about payment options for BART’s HVD tickets, staff
investigated how current BART Plus riders are actually paying for their tickets and found
that 49.5% are using a credit card, 28.7% pay with a debit card, and the remaining 21.8%
use cash. Based on how current BART Plus riders pay for their tickets, approximately
80% of riders will be able to take advantage of the Clipper BART high-value discount. In
addition, a computer is not necessary to purchase the paper HVD ticket, which is sold at
seven retail locations and through the mail upon request. Cash-paying riders also will be
able to use other discounted fare media, i.e., East Bay Value Pass and BART-to-bus fare
discount.

Additionally, in response to advisory committee members’ comments, BART
recommends to the bus operators that during Clipper card roll-out on their systems and
before the BART Plus ticket is discontinued, the operators provide information on fare
media alternatives to BART Plus to their BART Plus riders and offer Clipper cards to
them. BART Plus notices will also remain posted through December 2015 on 61 BART
ticket vending machines that sell BART Plus tickets, and these notices include
information on existing fare media alternatives to BART Plus as well as an e-mail address
and phone number that riders can use to contact BART with any questions.





An equity finding is made after considering both the fare change analysis results and
public comment received. The equity finding of this report assumes that the fare change
will disproportionately impact minority and low-income riders. However, the
disproportionate impacts are not adverse because existing fare products offer better or
similar fares and fare media as BART Plus. Therefore, the report concludes that the
termination will not result in a disparate impact or disproportionate burden on minority
riders or low-income riders, respectively.





1. INTRODUCTION

To ensure compliance with federal and state civil rights regulations, including but not
limited to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and FTA Circular 4702.1B [dated
October 1, 2012 (Circular)], a transit agency performs an analysis of any fare change to
determine if the change has a disparate impact on minority riders or a disproportionate
burden on low-income riders when compared to overall users. In accordance with the
Circular, the transit agency makes this determination by comparing the analysis results
against a threshold, as defined in its Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden
Policy.

The fare change discussed in this report is the discontinuation of the BART Plus ticket,
which is an intra-agency joint fare product accepted by BART and currently the following
five bus operators:

Bus ; £°’°““L99"°Y . :

The agreement among these agencies governing the BART Plus program expires on
December 31, 2015.

As the FTA has encouraged transit agency coordination in undertaking Title VI
requirements for joint fare products, BART offered to undertake coordinated Title VI
analysis for both itself and any BART Plus bus operator who wished to be included in the
findings of the coordinated Title VI analysis. If a bus operator did not choose to be
included in and governed by the findings of the coordinated Title VI analysis, it would
conduct its own Title VI analysis. The five BART Plus bus operators informed BART
that they wish to participate in and assume responsibility for the coordinated Title VI
analysis undertaken by BART, as described in this report. This report uses FTA-approved
methodology to access the effects of a fare type change; draws on data from BART
ridership surveys and BART automated fare collection equipment; and includes public
outreach undertaken in accordance with BART’s Public Participation Plan.

The BART Plus ticket, good for a two-week period, is used as a flash pass for unlimited
bus rides, gives a discount of 5% to 8% for BART trips, and can be used to make a last
BART trip with as little as a nickel left on the ticket. The table below shows the pricing
structure of BART Plus tickets, which are available in eight denominations.





Price Rider  Price Rider Total Price BART BARTS BART%
Pays for Bus Pays for of BART Valueon Discount Discount
Pass BART Value Plus Ticket Ticket Given Given

‘A’ 'B' 'A'+'B' 'C'-'B'
$29 | %4 $1 5.0%
o 529 6.7%
$29 5.0%
g 6.7%
$29 6.0%

Ticket prices range from $43 to $76 for a two-week period. The price of the bus pass
portion of a ticket is always $29. For BART trips, the rider pays a discounted amount of
$14 to $47 to receive BART value of $15 to $50.

In 1991, the BART Plus ticket program was initiated to encourage transit use and respond
to the objectives of SB 602 (California Government Code Section 66516) regarding
regional fare coordination, which is under the purview of the Metropolitan Transportation
Commission (MTC). The BART Plus program was intended to end once the regional
smart card Clipper®, formerly known as TransLink®, became operational on the various
BART Plus program participants’ systems.3 Clipper® provides regional fare coordination
as one fare medium good on multiple systems, automatically providing applicable transfer
discounts.

Prior to 2003, the regional BART Plus program included bus participants serving five
counties: Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, San Mateo, and Santa Clara. The 10
bus operators were AC Transit, County Connection, Dumbarton Express, SamTrans, San
Francisco Muni, Tri Delta Transit, Union City Transit, Santa Clara Valley Transportation
Authority (VTA), WestCAT, and Wheels. In 2003, AC Transit withdrew from the BART
Plus program because of financial reasons, which led to a decline of approximately 66%
in both ticket sales and BART Plus trips on BART.

Effective January 1, 2013, four other participants in the BART Plus program withdrew:
San Francisco Muni, Dumbarton Express, SamTrans, and VTA. They ended their
participation because they had become Clipper-enabled. As the four operators chose to
withdraw from the program, each of them was responsible for performing its own Title VI
analysis of the impact of terminating participation. None of the completed Title VI
analyses provided to BART found a disparate impact and/or disproportionate burden
resulting from withdrawing from the BART Plus program.

With the withdrawal of these four agencies, the once-regional BART Plus program
became limited to five bus participants serving the East Bay in Contra Costa County and
parts of Alameda County. The effect of the withdrawal of the four agencies was a decline
of approximately 96% in BART Plus ticket sales and ridership. Annual ticket sales
dropped from about 43,000 tickets in FY12 to about 1,500 tickets (19% of which were

3 Memorandum, dated October 8, 2003, from MTC Deputy Director, Policy, to MTC Program and Allocations Committee: “This ticket
[BART Plus] was intended as an interim solution, to be replaced by the universal transit ticket, i.e., TransLink®.”

6





never used on BART) in FY15. BART Plus trips on BART (bus operators do not record
BART Plus trips) declined from over 250,000 in FY'12 to fewer than 10,000 trips out of
BART’s 126 million trips in FY15. Currently, on an average weekday, approximately 30
BART Plus trips are taken on BART. The table below shows annual BART Plus tickets
sales figures, trip data, and key events from FY03 through FY15.

Annual
BART Plus Trips BART Plus
on BART Tickets Sold
FYi5 By TRl
FY14 10,046 1,540
FY13 126,298 21,208 4 operators, including SF Muni, withdraw
FY12 256,443 43,248
Fyl1 330,492 46,487
FY10 336,669 51,491 Bus portion price increases to $29 from $24
FY09 474,413 47,744
FY08 520,912 52,178
FYO7 574,947 70,403
FY06 612,459 72,590
FY05 758,614 76,438
FY04 1,432,324 132,283 ACTransit withdraws; bus portion price
increases to $24 from $14

FY03 2,264,516 230,797

At the time of the withdrawal of the four operators in 2013, the remaining five East Bay
BART Plus pm%ram participants wished to continue the BART Plus program until they
became Clipper -enabled. As of November 1, 2015, four of the five operators began to
accept Clipper as fare payment. The fifth operator, Union City Transit, is scheduled to be
Clipper-enabled in summer 2016 (at Union City Station on an average weekday there are
one exit and one entry made with a BART Plus ticket). The five bus operators have
informed BART that they will be terminating participation in the BART Plus program
after December 31, 2015, when the current agreement expires.

As part of the Title VI assessment, BART has undertaken public outreach to receive
public input on discontinuing the BART Plus ticket from low-income, minority, and
limited-English-proficient (LEP) populations, in accordance with BART’s Public
Participation Plan, completed in May 2010 and revised in July 2011, and the Circular.
Public outreach activities and results are described in Section 3 of this report.

2. MINORITY DISPARATE IMPACT ANALYSIS AND LOW-INCOME
DISPROPORTIONATE BURDEN ANALYSIS

2.1 Assessing Fare Change Effects
This section describes the data and methodology used to assess the effects of a fare change

on minority and low-income riders, in accordance with the fare equity analysis procedures
in the Circular.

Data analysis shall include the following steps as outlined in Chap. IV-19 of the Circular:

7





i.  Determine the number and percent of users of each fare media being changed;
ii.  Review fares before the change and after the change;
ili.  Compare the differences between minority users and non-minority users; and
iv.  Compare the differences for each particular fare media between low-income users
and non-low-income users.

As stated in the Circular App. K-11, comparing protected riders and nonprotected riders
can “yield even clearer depictions of differences.” For fare type changes, BART will
assess whether protected riders are disproportionately more likely to use the affected fare
type or media, and if such effects are adverse. In accord with BART’s Disparate
Impact/Disproportionate Burden Policy (DI/DB Policy), impacts will be considered
disproportionate when the difference between the affected fare type’s protected ridership
share and the overall system’s protected ridership share is greater than 10%. When the
survey sample size of the ridership for the affected fare type is too small to permit a
finding of statistical significance, BART will collect additional data if viable. If the
resulting survey sample size is also too small to permit a finding of statistical significance,
BART may conclude that a finding of disparate impact and/or disproportionate burden
cannot be determined based on the available data. According to BART’s Marketing and
Research Department, as a guideline, the minimum sample size needed for computing
margins of error, which measure how accurately a survey sample represents an overall
population, is 30 respondents. Larger sample sizes will have lower margins of error, and
thus be more likely to be representative of the population.

Should BART find that minority riders experience disparate impacts from the proposed

change, BART should take steps to avoid, minimize, or mitigate disparate impacts. If the

additional steps do not mitigate the potential disparate impacts on minority riders,

pursuant to the Circular, BART may proceed with the proposed fare change if BART can

show that:

e A substantial legitimate justification for the proposed fare change exists; and,

e There are no alternatives serving the same legitimate objectives that would have a less
disparate impact on minority populations.

If a finding is made that the proposed fare change would place a disproportionate burden
on low-income riders compared to non-low income riders, BART will take steps to avoid,
minimize, or mitigate impacts where practicable. BART shall also describe alternatives
available to low-income populations affected by the fare change. Mitigation is neither
necessary nor required where no disparate impact and/or disproportionate burden is found.

2.2 Methodology and Data Used

Circular Chap. IV-19 states that an agency shall analyze any available information from
ridership surveys when evaluating the adverse effects of fare changes. The fare change
under study is a change to a specific fare type, and the methodology and data used are
described below.

Methodology
BART uses FTA-approved methodology to assess the effects of a fare type change.

The methodology for fare type changes assesses whether protected riders are
disproportionately more likely to use the affected fare type or media. Recent rider survey
data are used to make this determination. When the survey sample size of the ridership

8





for the affected fare type is too small to permit a determination of statistical significance,
BART collects additional data. In accordance with the DI/DB Policy, impacts are
considered disproportionate when the difference between the protected ridership using the
affected fare type and the protected ridership of the overall system is greater than 10%.

Data

The most recent BART survey, the 2014 Customer Satisfaction Survey conducted in
September 2014, had no BART Plus rider respondents in a sample of over 5,600 randomly
selected customers surveyed. As a result, this report cites the 2012 Customer Satisfaction
Survey, which included 14 BART Plus riders reporting ethnicity and 11 BART Plus riders
reporting income.”* :

For the 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey, minority includes riders who are Asian,
Hispanic (any race), Black/African American, American Indian/Alaskan Native, and
Other (including multi-racial). Non-minority is defined as white, non-Hispanic.
According to responses to the 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey, 62.3% of BART riders
are minority.

Consistent with BART’s Title VI Triennial Program standards, low-income is defined as
200% of the federal poverty level. This broader definition is used to account for the
region’s higher cost of living when compared to other regions. Approximating 200% of
the federal poverty level is done by considering both the household size and household
income of respondents to the 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey. The table below shows
the household size and household income combinations that comprise “low-income.”

LOW INCOME
Household Household
Size Income
1+ Under $25K
2+ $25-$29.9K
3+ $30-$39.9K
4+ $40-549.9K
5+ $50-$59.9K

As an example, a household of two or more people with an income of $28,000 would be
considered low-income. According to 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey responses,
33.6% of BART riders are considered low income.

Staff worked to gather demographic data from current BART Plus riders through the
public outreach and survey activities described in Section 3. Six surveys were received,
two of which were from current BART Plus riders; one respondent identified as
nonprotected, and the other identified as minority and non-low income. One voice mail
was also received, although the caller did not provide any demographic information.

* It is important to note that the 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey was conducted before San Francisco Muni, Dumbarton Express,
SamTrans, and VTA withdrew from the program, which led to a 96% drop in BART Plus ridership. Therefore, the BART Plus rider
demographics from the 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey may not reflect the demographics of current BART Plus riders.





2.3 Analysis Results

Pursuant to the Circular, BART is to perform an analysis of any fare change to determine
if the change disproportionately impacts minority and/or low-income riders. In accordance
with the Circular, BART is to make this determination by comparing the analysis results
against the appropriate threshold defined in BART’s DI/DB Policy.

The 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey included responses from 14 BART Plus riders
reporting ethnicity and 11 BART Plus riders reporting income. As shown in the tables
below, 82.3% of the 14 surveyed BART riders using BART Plus are minority, compared
to 62.3% of all BART riders, and 27.7% of the 11 surveyed BART Plus riders are low-
income, compared to 33.6% of all BART riders.

Non- Sample

BART Riders Using BART Plus 82.3% 17.7% 14

Difference from All BART Riders 20.0%
Low- Non-Low | Sample

Income

BART Riders Using BART Plus 27.7% 72.3% 11

Difference from All BART Riders -5.9%
Source: 2012 BART Customer Satisfaction Survey

The BART Plus rider sample sizes are extremely small. For sample sizes under 30
respondents, a “margin of error,” which measures how accurately a survey sample
represents an overall population, cannot be calculated--the actual percentage of minority
and low-income BART Plus riders could vary dramatically from the percentages in the
tables above derived from these extremely small survey samples. As such, whether or not
the fare type change to BART Plus disproportionately impacts minority and low-income
riders cannot be determined based on the 2012 data. As described in this report’s Section
3, Public Participation, BART conducted outreach to solicit input from and gather
additional demographic data on BART Plus riders; the result of this outreach was six
surveys received, two of which were from current BART Plus riders, one of whom
identified as minority and non-low income, and the other as nonprotected. In the absence
of sufficient survey data, this report assumes that the fare change will disproportionately
impact minority riders and low-income riders.

As BART Plus is a joint fare instrument, it is informative to include demographic data
from the five BART Plus bus operators. Demographic data for BART Plus bus operators’
overall ridership from surveys the bus operators conducted are shown in the table on the
next page (the operators did not gather data by ticket type to identify BART Plus riders).
These data indicate that overall, bus riders of the BART Plus operators are more minority
and low-income than BART’s overall ridership.

10





Non- Sample Non-Low Sample

; Minority  Minority  Size Low-Income Income _ Size
County Connectiol 59.4% 406%  NA | 524%  476% N/A
i Delta Transit 78.6% 21.4% 1,237 60.6% 39.4% 937

Tr

it  90.0%  10.0% 69.0%" 85
WestCAT ; 80.0% ’ 20.0% N/A ‘ 60.9%2 39.1%

'Union City Transit's definition of low-income does not include household size; the figures presented reflect households
with annual incomes under $50,000, regardless of household size.

“WestCAT's definition of low-income does not include household size; the figures presented reflect households with
annual incomes under $60,000, regardless of household size.

*Wheels does not perform rider-specific surveys and instead uses service area demographics from the American
Community Survey.

24 Cumulative Impacts Analysis

Since BART’s last FTA triennial review dated January 2014 for the period January 1,
2012 through December 31, 2013, there have been no similar fare changes to BART fare
products, including discounted fare products and fare products accepted by another
agency; therefore, there are no cumulative impacts associated with terminating the BART
Plus ticket program to analyze.

2.5 Alternatives Available for People Affected by the Fare Change

BART Plus ticket users have fare medium alternatives available to them that would avoid,
minimize, or mitigate the assumed disproportionate impacts of discontinuing the ticket,
depending on how the particular rider uses the BART Plus ticket and how the rider will
use the alternative fare media. In order to exactly ascertain whether the available fare
medium alternatives would avoid, minimize, or mitigate the assumed disproportionate
impacts on the riders who on an average weekday take approximately 30 BART trips
using BART Plus, the specific combined BART and bus tripmaking patterns of these
riders would need to be known. BART has trip data for BART Plus ticket users, but the
bus operators do not record trips on their systems made with BART Plus. In the absence
of this data, the example alternatives analyzed in this report were chosen based on the
actual data available on BART Plus trips taken on BART, and the actual number and
value of BART Plus tickets sold.

A key feature of the BART Plus ticket is that it is one fare medium good on buses and
BART. The Clipper card offers the same functionality and so can replace BART Plus, as
was intended from the outset of the BART Plus program. This section analyzes
alternative transit modes, fare payment types, and fare payment media available for people
who could be affected by the fare change. The analysis compares fares paid with the
BART Plus ticket to fares paid through available alternatives, all of which are available
both on Clipper and as paper fare media. As part of the introduction of Clipper on the bus
operators’ systems, which began in November 2015 for four operators and is scheduled
for summer 2016 for Union City Transit, each operator will have 500 Clipper cards that
can be distributed to riders free of charge. For example, County Connection plans to host
outreach events as part of the agency's Clipper roll-out, at which riders can receive a free
Clipper card.

11





2.5.1 Alternatives Available to Avoid, Minimize or Mitigate Disproportionate Impact

BART operates a heavy rail system in the counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, San
Francisco and San Mateo, as well as an automated people mover that links the BART
Coliseum Station and Oakland International Airport. The other five BART Plus program
agencies provide the following bus services, which connect to BART in the East Bay:

Counties Served BART Station Connection
County | Central Contra Costa County | Concord, Dublin, Lafayette, North
Connection Concord, Orinda, Pleasant Hill,
Walnut Creek
Tri Delta Transit | Eastern Contra Costa County Dublin, Pittsburg/Bay Point, West
and part of Alameda County Dublin
Union City Transit Alameda County Union City
WestCAT | Western Contra Costa County El Cerrito del Norte

Wheels | Eastern Alameda County and | Dublin, Walnut Creek, West Dublin

part of Central Contfra Costa
County

Bus Payment Alternatives

The bus portion of the BART Plus ticket costs $58 per month (it is the BART value that
varies among the eight ticket denominations available). Alternatives to using the BART
Plus ticket as fare payment for bus trips are (a) getting the BART-to-bus transfer discount
by paying with Clipper or cash or (b) purchasing a monthly Clipper or paper East Bay
Value Pass, good for unlimited rides on County Connection, Tri Delta Transit, WestCAT,
and Wheels.

The table below shows a cost comparison of the fare payment options. The cost of 20
round trips with the transfer discount varies by bus operator, from being $8 less expensive
than BART Plus (Union City Transit), to $7 more expensive than BART Plus (Tri Delta
Transit). The $60 East Bay Value Pass is $2 or 3.4% higher than the $58 price of the bus
portion of the BART Plus ticket.

'Round Trip Bus Fare Comparison Cost, Per Month
From BART: Pay
Transfer 20 Round
To BART: Pay |Discounted Bus | Total Round | Trips on Bus, |BART Plus: Bus
Regular Bus Fare Fare Trip Fare | with transfer | Portion of |East Bay Value
‘A 'B' 'A'+'B’ discount Ticket Pass
County Connection $2.00 $1.00 $3.00 $60 $58 $60
Tri Delta Transit $2.00 $1.25 $3.25 $65 $58 $60
Union City Transit $2.00 $0.50 $2.50 $50 $58 N/A
WestCAT $1.75 $1.00 $2.75 $55 558 $60
Wheels (LAVTA) $2.00 $1.00 $3.00 $60 $58 $60

12





BART Payment Alternatives
The BART Plus ticket good for a two-week period is available in eight denominations of

BART loaded value, sold at the following discounts:

BART Value on BART S BART %

BART Plus BART Plus | Price Rider Pays | Discount | Discount
Ticket Price Ticket for BART Value Given Given
T s e
$19 S1 5.0%
$57 $28 S2 6.7%

567 $38 52 e

$76 $50 $47 $3

A BART High Value Discount (HVD) ticket, which gives a 6.25% discount, is an
alternative to the BART value on a BART Plus ticket. As shown in the table below, the
HVD ticket is available in two denominations: a ticket with $48 in value sold for $45 or
$64 in value sold for $60. HVD tickets are available on Clipper, at seven retail locations,
and by mail. Unlike the BART Plus ticket, the HVD ticket value does not expire.

BART S BART %
BART HVD Price Rider Pays | Discount | Discount
Ticket Value | for BART Value Given Given
$48 $45 $3 6.25%
$64 $60 $4 6.25%

The BART Plus ticket also has a last ride feature so that a rider with as little as a nickel
left on the ticket can use the ticket to take one last ride anywhere in the BART system.
When the BART Plus program began in the early 1990s, the last ride feature was
necessary because of a technical limitation then present in BART s automated fare
collection equipment that meant a BART Plus ticket could not have value added to it at a
BART add value machine. Thus, there was no choice but to have the system let a rider
exit with a ticket that had as little as a nickel left on it.

The level of discount provided by the last ride feature depends on both the amount of
value remaining on the ticket and the fare for the last trip taken, and so the discount is not
at a set rate (for example, 10% off full fare). A last ride discount can vary from $0.05 to
$15.35. For example, for a $1.85 minimum fare last ride trip, if the rider has a nickel left
on the ticket, the value of the last ride feature is $1.80; however, if the rider has $1.80 left
on the ticket, the value of the last ride feature is $0.05. In FY15, the last ride feature was
used on approximately 79% of BART Plus tickets and had an average value of $2.36; the
remaining approximately 21% of tickets had an average unused value of $5.86 left on the

13





ticket. Thus, the last ride feature benefits riders differentially. With Clipper, riders neither
have unused value on their tickets nor receive widely varying discounts.

2.5.2 Comparison of Alternatives Available to Avoid, Minimize or Mitigate
Disproportionate Impact

The number of each ticket denomination sold in FY15 is shown in the table below.

Approximately 61% of all BART Plus ticket sales are of the $43 denomination with $15

in BART value good for a two-week period. The next most common denomination sold is

the $76 ticket at 17% of the total sold.

BART Loaded BART Plus
BART Plus Value on | Tickets Sold % of Tickets
Ticket Price Ticket FY2015

259
1,487 100.0%

This report compares the cost of using BART Plus to the cost of using two options for fare

payment:
e Option A. The East Bay Value Pass and BART 6.25% high value discount (HVD)
tickets.

e Option B. The BART-to-bus discount fare on the bus and BART’s HVD tickets.

The table below shows the availability of these alternatives on Clipper and paper fare
media.

Alternative Fare Medium: | East Bay' : THVDT
Available on Clipper? Yes Yes Yes
Rider automatically | Autoload only, funded
gets discount with credit or debit card
Available on Paper? Yes Yes Yes
Rider obtains Sold by mail or at 7
transfer in BART retail locations
paid area

Individual BART Plus ticket users take different combinations of numbers of trips on
BART and bus. Actual data for these trip combinations are not available because bus
operators do not record the number of bus trips made using BART Plus. Thus, the
comparisons of available alternatives to BART Plus described in this report are based on

14





actual BART Plus ridership on BART and actual ticket sales as representative of likely
BART Plus user tripmaking patterns.

Two scenarios were selected for analysis based on the most commonly purchased
denominations of BART Plus tickets, good for a two-week period:
¢ Scenario One: Alternatives to a rider purchasing the $43 ticket with $15 in
BART value (61% of total purchases)
e Scenario Two: Alternatives to a rider purchasing the $76 ticket with $50 in
BART value (17% of total purchases).

The next sections describe the results of analyzing the two scenarios.

Scenario One assumes the BART Plus rider buys two $43 BART Plus tickets for the
month, which have a total of $30 in BART value. For analysis purposes, it is assumed the
rider uses this small amount of BART value to pay for $1.85 minimum fare trips, and
$1.85 is the value used to calculate costs for comparison purposes, as shown in the table
on page 17. This assumption is supported by BART ridership data, which shows that
about 45% of trips taken by BART riders using BART Plus are minimum fare trips.” A
matrix of all trips taken by entry and exit BART station for the month of September 2015
is provided in Appendix A.°

The $30 in BART value per month will pay for 16 one-way BART trips at $1.85 (or two
BART round-trips per week), which leaves $0.40 on each of the two tickets at the end of
the two-week period. The rider can choose either to leave the $0.40 on each ticket, or the
rider can use the last ride feature for one last trip per ticket, for a maximum of 18 trips per
month if the patron uses the last ride feature of both tickets. Because the rider has this
choice regarding the last ride feature, the scenario includes calculations based on the
rider’s taking (a) 16 BART trips (or eight round-trips) per month or (b) 18 BART trips (or
nine round-trips) per month.

Under the East Bay Value Pass and HVD ticket option (Option A), the rider can take
unlimited bus rides, similar to the BART Plus ticket. Under the BART-to-bus transfer
discount option (Option B), the rider pays per bus ride. Option B assumes the rider takes
one bus round-trip to and from the BART station for each BART round-trip he takes. For
example, 16 BART trips per month, equal to eight BART round-trips, require eight bus
round-trips per month. However, Option B assumes these eight bus round-trips and an
additional 15 regular fare one-way bus trips, in order to better simulate the unlimited bus
rides BART Plus can offer.

The results of these analyses, as shown in the table on page 17, are the following:

3 It should be noted that the BART Plus fare instrument is designed to benefit frequent riders of both bus and
BART; however, the actual usage on BART reflects infrequent use (two round-trips per week) compared to
most BART riders. Approximately 72% of BART riders take BART three or more days per week, of whom
56% take BART five or more days per week, based on data from BART’s 2014 Customer Satisfaction
Survey.

® BART Plus ridership is so small that reporting average weekday data (the most common time-period

BART uses to report trip data) is not possible, since most trips would be a fraction of a trip for each entry
and exit pair.

15





Option Al. Using the East Bay Value Pass and HVD ticket option, the rider would
pay $1.75 or 2.0% more to take 16 BART trips, compared to the BART Plus option,
Option A2. The rider would pay $5.22 or 6.1% to take 18 BART trips using the
East Bay Value Pass and HVD tickets.

Option B1. It would be cheaper in all cases to use the bus transfer discount and
HVD tickets option instead of BART Plus under the bus transfer discount and HVD
tickets option that includes 16 trips per month on BART, 8 round trips on bus with
discount, and 15 regular fare bus one-way trips. Savings range from 2.6% to 11.6%.
Option B2. Under the bus transfer discount and HVD tickets option to take 18 trips
per month on BART, 9 round trips on bus with discount, and 15 regular fare bus
one-way trips, it would be cheaper in the case of Union City and WestCAT to use
the bus transfer discount and HVD tickets option instead of BART Plus, with
savings of 2.7% and 4.4% respectively. For two operators, the bus transfer option
would cost 2.6% more, and for Tri Delta Transit, the cost differential would be
+5.2%.

16





SCENARIO ONE ‘
BART PLUS: 2 $43 tickets per n
BART Plus ticket price (2 tickets @$43)

BART value on BART Plus tickets

Cost of 16 BART trips @ $1.85

Remainder on BART Plus ticket

Value of Last Ride feature, if rider uses it to take 2 last trips

Total Cost of Bus Rides & either (a) 16 or (b) 18 $1.85 BART Trips with

BART Plus

Difference from

BART Plus

AST BAY VALUE
East Bay Value Pass Price

Al: 16 Trips

Cost of 16 BART trips @ $1.85
Cost to rider of $29.60 with 6.25% high value discount

$

%

Total Cost of Bus Rides with East Bay Value Pass & 16 $1.85 BART $1.75 2.0%
Trips with HVD
A2: 18 Trips
Cost of 18 BART trips @ $1.85 $33.30
Cost to rider of $33.30 with 6.25% high value discount
Total Cost of Bus Rides with East Bay Value Pass & 18 $1.85 BART $5.22 6.1%
Trips with HVD
Option B. BUS TRANSFER DISCOUN
B1: 16 Trips
Cost of 16 BART trips @ $1.85 $29.60
Cost to rider of $29.60 with 6.25% high value discount $27.75
Total Cost of 16 $1.85 BART Trips with HVD, 8 Bus Round Trips (RTs)
with Bus Transfer Discount, 15 Regular Fare One-Way Bus Trips:
County Connection @ $3.00 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare  $§ -$4.25| -4.9%
Tri Delta @ $3.25 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare -$2.25| -2.6%
Union City @ $2.50 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare -$8.25| -9.6%
WestCAT @ $2.75 RT, $1.75 Regular Fare -$10.00| -11.6%
Wheels @ $3.00 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare -$4.25| -4.9%
B2: 18 Trips
Cost of 18 BART trips @ $1.85 $33.30
Cost to rider of $33.30 with 6.25% high value discount $31.22
Total Cost of 18 $1.85 BART Trips with HVD, 9 Bus Round Trips (RTs)
with Bus Transfer Discount, 15 Regular Fare One-Way Bus Trips:
County Connection @ $3.00 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare = $2.22| 2.6%
Tri Delta @ $3.25 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare | S4.47| 5.2%
Union City @ $2.50 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare -$2.28| -2.7%
WestCAT @ $2.75 RT, $1.75 Regular Fare | -$3.78| -4.4%
Wheels @ $3.00 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare $2.22 2.6%

17






Scenario Two assumes the BART Plus rider buys two $76 BART Plus tickets for the
month, which have a total of $100 in BART value. The estimated average fare riders pay
using the ticket with higher BART value is $5.00. The $100 in BART value per month
will pay for 20 one-way $5.00 BART trips (or five round-trips over two weeks), which
leaves no remaining value on either of the two tickets at the end of the two-week period,
and so the last ride feature is not used.

The results for Scenario Two, as shown in the table below, are the following:

e Option A. Using the East Bay Value Pass and HVD ticket option, the rider would pay
1.2% more, or $1.75 per month, than if the rider used BART Plus.

e Option B. Using the bus transfer discount and HVD tickets option (20 BART trips,
10 bus round-trips at a discount, and 15 one-way regular fare bus trips), the rider
would pay less on Union City Transit and WestCAT (-2.1% and -3.0% respectively,
and pay more on the other three operators, ranging from +1.2% to +2.8%.

$CENARIO TWO

BART Plus ticket price (2 tickets @$76) $152.00
BART value on BART Plus tickets $100.00
Cost of 20 BART trips @ $5.00 $100.00
Remainder on BART Plus ticket $0.00
Value of Last Ride feature

Total Cost of Bus Rides & 20 $5.00 BART Trips with BART Plus

Difference from
BART Plus

East Bay Value Pass Price $60.00
Cost of 20 BART trips @ $5.00 $100.00
Cost to rider of $100 with 6.25% high value discount $93.75
Total Cost of Bus Rides with East Bay Value Pass & 20 $5.00 | $1.75| 1.2%
BART Trips with HVD
ost of 20 BART trips @ $5.00 $100.00
Cost to rider of $100 with 6.25% high value discount $93.75
Total Cost of 20 $5.00 BART Trips with HVD, 10 Bus Round
Trips (RTs) with Bus Transfer Discount, 15 Regular Fare One-
Way Bus Trips:
County Connection @ $3.00 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare | $1.75| 1.2%
Tri Delta @ $3.25 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare $4.25 2.8%
Union City @ $2.50 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare $3.25| -2.1%
WestCAT @ $2.75 RT, $1.75 Regular Fare -$4.50| -3.0%
Wheels @ $3.00 RT, $2.00 Regular Fare $1.75| 1.2%

As the actual combined BART and bus tripmaking patterns of the BART riders who use
the BART Plus ticket to take approximately 30 trips on an average weekday are not
available, the results for each of these riders could be more or less favorable than the

18





examples presented here. However, the Circular’s requirement regarding alternatives
provides for latitude, from the stricter requirement to “avoid” through to the less strict
direction to “minimize” the effects of the fare change. This report finds that the assumed
disproportionate impacts are not adverse because existing fare products offer better or
similar fares and fare media as BART Plus.’

The following information supports a conclusion that ending the program is justified:

e BART Plus participant bus operators will be Clipper-operational and the ticket
program from its inception was designed to end once the regional smart card
became available to riders®.

e The BART Plus ticket no longer serves its intended function as a regional joint bus
and BART fare product.

In FY15, about 9,200 out of almost 126 million BART trips were made using BART Plus,
or 0.007% of all BART trips. On an average weekday, approximately 30 BART Plus trips
are taken on BART, at a program administration cost of approximately $45,000 per year.
(As noted earlier, BART Plus trip count data are not available for bus trips, because
BART Plus is used as a flash pass on the bus operators.) In addition, 19% of all BART
Plus tickets purchased in FY15 were never used on BART. As the table on page 14
shows, of the remaining 80% of tickets sold, approximately 61% were $43 tickets, which
have the lowest BART loaded value ($15 for a two-week period). At BART’s minimum
$1.85 fare, $15 pays for eight one-way trips over the two-week period, or two round-trips
per week.

The chart on the next page shows the decline over time in BART Plus trips: Almost 2.3
million trips were taken in FYO03 but in FY15, as noted, that number had decreased to
about 9,200 trips. The tripmaking decline can be associated with the following events,
most notably the withdrawal of the most heavily traveled bus operators in the region:

2003: AC Transit withdraws from program

2004: Bus portion of ticket price increases from $14 to $24

2009: Bus portion of ticket price increases from $24 to $29

2013: San Francisco Muni, Dumbarton Express, SamTrans, and VTA become
Clipper-enabled and withdraw from program

Data supports that the BART Plus ticket is not being used for its intended purpose as a
regional joint BART and bus fare product.

Lk Data is not available that indicates there is a BART Plus rider who uses both Union City Transit and one or more of the four bus
operators who accept the East Bay Value Pass (BART’s Union City Station serves an average of one to two BART Plus trips per day).
If there is such a rider who takes Union City Transit and another bus operator, depending on their travel patterns, that rider could pay
more than with BART Plus.

¥ Four of the five BART Plus bus operators became Clipper-enabled effective November 1, 2015, and the remaining operator, Union
City Transit, will be Clipper-enabled by summer 2016. BART’s Union City Station serves an average of one to two BART Plus trips
per day.

19





BART Plus Trips, FY03-FY15

2,500,000
2,000,000 \
AC Transit
withdraws,
eff 9/03
1,500,000
“w
a
E Bus portion of
s ticket price goes
2 from $14 to $24
& ‘ eff 2/04
1,000,000 |
Bus portion of
ticket price goes
from $24 to $29
eff 7/09
500,000 o
SF Muni, Dumbarton,
SamTrans, VTA withdraw,
< eff 1/13
0 - . T : : s : wo—
FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Consistent with BART’s Public Participation Plan completed in May 2010 and revised in
July 2011, BART conducted outreach to inform the public and solicit feedback on ending
the BART Plus program. Multilingual outreach was conducted both to the general public
and also specifically to low income, minority and Limited English Proficient (LEP)
populations in the BART and bus service areas.

3.1 Process for Soliciting Public Input

During September 2015, BART made available in English, Spanish, and Chinese, as well
as other languages upon request, information about the program termination, available
fare media alternatives to BART Plus, as well as a survey for gathering rider comments
and demographic data. The survey was available online at bart.gov or in print. An
English version of the survey is provided in Appendix B.

Given that BART Plus riders represent just 0.007% of all daily BART riders, reaching
BART Plus riders was difficult and challenging. Staff worked with the participating bus
operators, canvassed bus riders in stations and analyzed actual BART Plus ridership trends
to reach as many riders as possible. The public was made aware of the public outreach
effort and survey through the following methods:

20






e A public notice in English, Spanish, and Chinese posted in the public notice holder
of the buses of BART Plus participants during the month of September 2015, a
copy of which is provided in Appendix B.

e A public notice in English, Spanish, and Chinese posted on the 61 BART ticket
vending machines at the 11 BART stations at which BART Plus bus operators
connect to BART, first posted at the beginning of September 2015 to remain in
place through December 2015, a copy of which is provided in Appendix C.

e Online information and a link to the BART Plus survey in the Title VI section of
BART’s website during the month of September 2015.

e In-station outreach events at which the survey in English, Spanish, and Chinese
was handed out to BART Plus riders. Due to limited BART Plus ridership, staff
had to analyze time-of-day BART Plus trip-taking information from BART’s
automated fare collection equipment to identify the stations and time periods
where BART Plus trips were most likely to be made.

o September 17, 2015, Spm-6pm, Walnut Creek Station: Staff provided one
BART Plus rider with the survey and a return self-addressed, stamped
envelope. This survey was not mailed back to BART.

o September 24, 2015, 4:30pm-5:30pm, Dublin/Pleasanton Station: Staff
provided surveys to four riders, two of whom were BART Plus users. Two
riders completed the survey in-station, neither of whom was a current BART
Plus rider. Two riders took the survey with them to return using the self-
addressed, stamped envelope provided, and both surveys were mailed back to
BART.

o September 30, 2015, 2:30pm-3:45pm, Concord Station: Staff canvassed the
station and the bus waiting area for BART Plus riders, but no BART Plus
riders were present to be surveyed.

e BART station agents were notified of the public outreach and asked to encourage
BART Plus riders to complete the survey during the month of September 2015.

e Surveys were also available at the customer service departments of BART and the
bus operators for mailing to customers requesting them during the month of
September 2015.

¢ Presentations made to BART’s Title VI/Environmental Justice Advisory
Committee and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Advisory Committees in May
and October 2015.

3.2 Survey Respondent Demographics

Of the six surveys BART received, two surveys were from BART Plus riders. One
respondent identified as minority and non-low income, and the other respondent identified
as non-minority and non-low income. Appendix D provides a database of all survey
respondents and comments received.

3.3 Public Comments

Two BART Plus riders submitted surveys with comments. One commenter who identified
as minority wrote that she hoped BART Plus would not be discontinued because BART
Plus is very convenient for people who ride BART and bus to work. The other
commenter, who identified as nonprotected, also noted that the BART Plus ticket was
very convenient as one card good on both BART and bus; the rest of her comment
focused on her belief that in the absence of BART Plus, she would have to buy a non-
Clipper County Connection commuter card. In addition to the two survey comments, one

21





voice mail was left by a commenter who noted that BART Plus has been economical for
her to use for years. Rider education that will accompany the roll-out of Clipper on the
BART Plus bus operators should clear up commenter misunderstandings about
alternatives available on Clipper, including discounted alternatives. Appendix D provides
a database of survey respondents and comments received.

Input was provided by members of BART’s Title VI/Environmental Justice Advisory
Committee and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Advisory Committee. BART formed
the two committees to ensure that the District is taking reasonable steps to incorporate
Title VI and Environmental Justice principles and the needs of LEP populations in
BART’s transportation decisions. Committee members are appointed to represent the
needs and viewpoints of minority, low-income, and/or LEP populations and are active
participants in local community-based organizations that serve one or more of these

groups.

BART staff met with the Title VI/Environmental Justice Advisory Committee on May 11,
2015, and the LEP Advisory Committee on May 19, 2015. At the May meetings, staff
presented background on the BART Plus program and the process for undertaking Title
VI analysis and outreach for program termination. Members of both the Title
VI/Environmental Justice Committee and the LEP Committee asked what options will be
available for BART Plus riders using Clipper. Staff responded that possible Clipper
replacements for the BART Plus ticket are the East Bay Value Pass (good on County
Connection, Tri Delta Transit, WestCAT, and Wheels) and the BART high-value discount
ticket, and that the Title VI report would include an alternatives analysis, which is
presented in Section 2.

On October 20, 2015, a joint meeting of the two advisory committees was held at which
staff presented Title VI analysis preliminary findings. Committee members noted that the
preliminary findings supported terminating the BART Plus program, with one member
referring to the termination as “totally justified.” While this one member acknowledged
and understood the reasons behind the termination of the program, he felt that current
BART Plus ticket users should understand what their alternatives are. In addition,
members expressed concern that low-income riders and those with limited computer
access could have difficulty getting the benefits of the Clipper card discounts, especially
the Clipper BART high-value discount (HVD), which is an autoload product for which the
rider pays with either a credit card or a debit card. Committee members noted that low-
income riders may be less likely to have a credit or debit card. In response to the concern
about payment options for BART’s HVD tickets, staff has investigated how current
BART Plus riders are actually paying for their tickets and found that 49.5% are using a
credit card, 28.7% pay with a debit card, and the remaining 21.8% use cash. Based on
how current BART Plus riders pay for their tickets, approximately 80% of riders will be
able to take advantage of the Clipper BART high-value discount. In addition, a computer
is not necessary to purchase the paper HVD ticket, which is sold at seven retail locations
and through the mail upon request. Cash-paying riders also will be able to use other
discounted fare media, i.e., East Bay Value Pass and BART-to-bus fare discount.

22





4. EQUITY FINDINGS FOR DISCONTINUING BART PLUS TICKET

This section provides equity findings for the fare change of discontinuing the BART Plus
ticket program. An equity finding is made after considering both the fare change analysis
results described in Section 2, as well as public comment received, as described in Section
3.

4.1 Minority Disparate Impact Finding

Data from BART’s 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey show that 82.3% of the 14 BART
Plus rider survey respondents are minority, compared to 62.3% of all BART riders.
However, due to this extremely small sample size of BART Plus riders, the actual
percentage of BART Plus riders who are minority could vary dramatically from this
percentage. As such, whether or not the fare type change to BART Plus exceeds a
Disparate Impact/Disproportionate Burden Policy threshold and thus would result in a
disparate impact cannot be determined based on the 2012 data. As described in this
report’s Section 3, Public Participation, BART conducted outreach to solicit input from
and gather additional demographic data on BART Plus riders; the result of this outreach
was six surveys received, two of which were from current BART Plus riders, one of
whom identified as minority and non-low income, and the other as nonprotected. In the
absence of sufficient survey data, this report assumes that the fare change would result in
a disproportionate impact on minority riders.

The assumed disproportionate impact, however, is not adverse because existing fare
products offer better or similar fares and fare media as BART Plus. Fare medium
alternatives include the East Bay Value Pass, BART-to-bus fare discounts, and BART
6.25% high value discount tickets. These products are all available both as paper fare
media and on one regional smart card, Clipper, thus replicating BART Plus ticket
functionality as a single fare medium accepted on both buses and BART.

Regarding public comment, as noted in Section 3.3, public comment was solicited from
riders. One comment was received from a BART Plus rider who identified as minority
which noted that the rider hoped BART Plus would not be discontinued because of its
convenience in using bus and BART. The Title VI/Environmental Justice Advisory
Committee and the Limited English Proficiency Advisory Committee did not have
comments on the fare change as it related to minority riders.

4.2 Low-Income Disproportionate Burden Finding

The 2012 Customer Satisfaction Survey included 11 surveyed BART riders using BART
Plus who reported income, and 27.7% of them are low-income, compared to 33.6% of all
BART riders. However, due to this extremely small sample size of BART Plus riders, the
actual percentage of BART Plus riders who are minority could vary dramatically from this
percentage. As such, whether or not the fare type change to BART Plus exceeds a
Disparate Impact/Disproportionate Burden Policy threshold and thus would result in a
disproportionate burden cannot be determined based on the 2012 data. As described in
this report’s Section 3, Public Participation, BART conducted outreach to gather
additional demographic data on BART Plus riders, and two of the six surveys received
were from BART Plus riders, one of whom identified as minority and non-low income
and the other as non-minority and non-low income. In the absence of sufficient survey
data, this report assumes a finding of disproportionate impact on low-income riders.

23





The assumed disproportionate impact, however, is not adverse because existing fare
products offer better or similar fares and fare media as BART Plus. Fare medium
alternatives include the East Bay Value Pass, BART-to-bus fare discounts, and BART
6.25% high value discount tickets. These products are all available both as paper fare
media and on one regional smart card, Clipper, thus replicating BART Plus ticket
functionality as a single fare medium accepted on both buses and BART.

As noted in Section 3.3, public comment was solicited from riders, and one voice mail
was left by a commenter who noted that BART Plus has been economical for her to use
for years. At the meeting in May 2015, members of the Title VI/Environmental Justice
Advisory Committee and the Limited English Proficiency Advisory Committee who also
represent BART’s low-income riders asked about options available for BART Plus riders
using Clipper, and these alternatives are described in Section 2 of this report. On October
20, 2015, at a joint meeting of the two advisory committees, committee members noted
that the preliminary findings supported terminating the BART Plus program, with one
member referring to the termination as “totally justified.” While this one member
acknowledged and understood the reasons behind the termination of the program, he felt
that current BART Plus ticket users should understand what their alternatives are. In
addition, members expressed concern that low-income BART Plus riders and those with
limited computer access could have difficulty getting the benefits of the Clipper card
discounts, especially the Clipper BART high-value discount, which is an autoload product
for which the rider pays with either a credit card or a debit card. Committee members
noted that low-income riders may be less likely to have a credit or debit card.

In response to the advisory committees’ concerns about BART Plus riders paying for the
HVD ticket with either a credit card or a debit card, staff has investigated the method by
which current BART Plus riders purchase their BART Plus tickets. Actual data to date for
2015 show that 78.2% of BART Plus riders use either a credit card (49.5%) or debit card
(28.7%) to purchase their BART Plus tickets, with the remaining 21.8% using cash, as
shown in the table below:

Payment Method Used to Purchase BART Plus Tickets

Credit Card 589 49.5%
Debit Card 341 28.7%
Cash 260 21.8%

Total 1190 100.0%

Based on how current BART Plus riders pay for their tickets, approximately 80% of riders
will be able to take advantage of the Clipper BART high-value discount. In addition, a
computer is not necessary to purchase the paper HVD ticket, which is sold at seven retail
locations and through the mail upon request. Cash-paying riders also will be able to use
other discounted fare media, i.e., East Bay Value Pass and BART-to-bus fare discount.

Additionally, in response to advisory committee members’ comments, BART
recommends to the bus operators that during Clipper card roll-out on their systems and
before the BART Plus ticket is discontinued, that they provide information on fare media
alternatives to BART Plus to their BART Plus riders and offer Clipper cards to them.
BART Plus notices will also remain posted through December 2015 on 61 BART ticket

24





vending machines that sell BART Plus tickets, and these notices include information on
existing fare media alternatives to BART Plus as well as an e-mail address and phone
number that riders can use to contact BART with any questions.

4.3 Equity Finding Conclusion

The equity finding of this report assumes that the fare change will disproportionately
impact minority and low-income riders. However, the disproportionate impacts are not
adverse because existing fare products offer better or similar fares and fare media as
BART Plus. Therefore, the report concludes that the termination will not result in a
disparate impact or disproportionate burden on minority riders or low-income riders,
respectively.

25





APPENDIX A. For the Month of September 2015:

Exitstation
El Cermrito Norte
£l Cerrito Plaza
Nonth Berkeley
Berkeley
Ashby
tacArthur
19th St/Cak
12th St'Qak
Lake Liemt
Frutvaie
San Leandro
S. Hayward
Union City
Fremont
Concord
Pleasant Hil
Walnut Creek
Lafayette
Orinda
Rackridge
W Oakland
Embarcaders
Kontgamery
Powel
Civie Center
18th Stiltission
Balhoa Park
Caima
DubinPlanmtn
N. Concord
Pittshurg/BayPt
San Brumo
SFO
Hillbrae
West Dublin
Qakland Awrport
ENTRIES

Entry station>
& bl

5 5 3
zZ & 2
2 & &
£ E o
S & €
S | g 2
31 i z
. 7

2

2

3

2

3

2

- 1
1

3

18 7 1

2y

ne Berkel

Ashby

MacArthuy

1ath SYCak

11

12th S¥Cak

o

31

Lake Merritt

Frugtvale

i1 19 14 4

San Leandre
S Hayward
Linion City
Fremont

- Concord

i
R R P X Ry

144

gasant Hill

P

N

FAT I

fx g

38

Wainut Creek

47

DY .

89

rs Lafayette

&

o)

Conda

3

26

Rockridge

¥ Cakland

ows

BART Plus Trips taken on BART

Ermbarcadern

«©w

18

w Montgomery

21

Fovell

- N

19

~ Civie Center

ny

[~

@

= a
3 2
£ &
z g
1

10 2
1 %
12 2

fma

Col

ESY

Dublin/Plsntn

oW

47

N Concord

10

PittsburgiBayPt

98

San Bruno

SFO

-

w Millbrae

West Dublin

Dakland Airport

EXITS
21

L R

- O W

682





APPENDIX B. BART PLUS SURVEY

BART Plus Ticket to be

Mw)SAig&gg% " s
W; Discontinued

Eﬁectwe January 1, 2016, the BART Plus ticket will no longer be accepted on buses or

BART.

= BART Plus ticket users can switch to Clipper to pay their fares. Clipper is cumrently accepted on BART and
will be accepted before Jammary 1. 2016 on the following buses: County Connection. Tri Delta Transit.
WestCAT, and Wheels.

» Clipper offers these discounted fare products: BART High Value Discount Ticket (valid only on BART), bus
passes, and the East Bay Value Pass ($60 monthly pass accepted on County Connection. Tri Delta Transit,
WestCAT, and Wheels).

Please answer the questions below. County Connection, Tri Delta Transit, Union City Transit, WestCAT,
Wheels, and BART value your input. and all comments will be made available to the governing boards of
the agendies. Please retum this survey by September 30, 2015.

1. Do you currently use the BART Plus ticket to pay your fare on Please tel us about yowrself (Your ansvers will halp us evaluale how

BART? well we're rearhing a¥f the communities we erve.)
ONo 0 Yes 6. 'What is your gendes?
2. About how often do you ride BART? O Maie O Female
g géﬁd?wz&m Note: Please answer BOTH Questions 7 and &
7. Are you of Hispanic, Latino or Spanish origin?
003 - 4days 2 week O No O ¥as
001 - 2days 3 week
0O 1- 3days a month 8. ‘What I your race of ethnic identification?
3 Less than onoe 3 month (Categories based on US Census)
O white
3. Do you currently use the BART Plus ticket to pay your fare on O slackiafican American
the bus? O Asian or Pactfic slander
O American indian or Alaska Naive
O S O Cther {please speciy}
4. if you answered "Yes” to Question 3, please check ali bus
operators you ride using BART Plus. 9. Do you speak a language other than English at home?
O No OYes
Dq(zatmm@m gmﬁigﬂ
13 il 3 Whee! —
T Union City Transi 10. IEf nygnlg r;:;lsumted Yes™ to Question 9, how wedl do you speak

3 very wall 03 well Okotwell ONotatal
5. Do you have any comments about BART Plus?

11. What Is your total annual household Income before taxes?

O Under $25,000 3 $50,000 - $59,999
O §25,000 - 29,999 3 $60,000 - $74,999
7 $30,000 - $39,999 O §75,000 - $99,999
O $40,000 - $49,993 0 $100,000 and mwer

12. including yourself, how many peaple live in your household?
a1 0Oz B3 04 as 0O & or mare

¥ you nood hinguage assistance sarvices, please call (510) 464-6752. # Si nacesi de 2sistencia de id Taxme af (310) 4646752
ERRRGEEE WNRC10)464672, ¢« B0 B RN PR JIMON Z BAMNMAR

Eang kailangan mo ang miong ng mgn sechisyo ag wika, paki twagan ang (310) 4646752,
Néu quy vi cin dich vy vy gp véngtn ngh, xiz v kag i 36 (S10) 4646772

27





APPENDIX C. PUBLIC NOTICE POSTED IN BUSES

BART Plus Ticket to be Discontinued
s aEl Se dejara de aceptar el boleto BART Plus

154 A

hii¥edyd BART Plus EXMKBEH

Effective January 1, 2016, the BART Plus ticket will no longer be accepted on buses or BART.
« BART Plus ticket users can switch to Clipper to pay their fares. Clipper is currently
accepted on BART and will be accepted before January 1, 2016 on the following buses:
County Connection, Tri Delta Transit, WestCAT, and Wheels.
« Clipper offers these discounted fare products: BART High Value Discount Ticket {valid
only on BART), bus passes, and the East Bay Value Pass ($60 monthly pass accepted
on County Connection, Tri Deita Transit, WestCAT, and Wheels).

To comment on this change, go to hitp/Awww bart goviquidefitleyi, call 510-464-6752, or e-
mail: fares@bart.qov. Comments are accepted through September 30, 2015.

A partir del 1° de enero de 2016, el boleto BART Plus dejara de ser aceptado en los autobuses
y en BART.

« Los usuarios de boletos BART Pilus pueden cambiar a Clipper para pagar sus
recomridos. BART actualmente acepta Clipper y antes del 1° de enero de 2016 la tarjeta
Clipper sera aceptada en los siguientes autobuses: County Connection, Tri Delta
Transit, WestCAT y Wheels.

= Clipper ofrece estas tarifas con descuento: BART High Value Discount Ticket (valido
s6lo en BART), pases de autobiis y East Bay Value Pass (pase mensual de $60
aceptado en County Connection, Tri Delta Transit, WestCAT y Wheeis).

Para hacer un comentario acerca de este cambio, visite hitp://iwww bart goviguideftitievi, lame
al 510-464-6752 o envie un e-mail a: fares@bart.gov. Se aceptaran comentarios hasta el 30 de
septiembre de 2015.

B201651 518, LEERS L RERERBART ST EEZBART PlusENR,

e BART PlusEMAI {2 A # TR AClipper+ X # ER. ClipperB i AMRBART , #£2016%F
158188 FaE FHLMER - County Connection, Tri Delta Transit, WestCAT , BB
Wheels,

e Clipperf@ it ol T IRMES | BARTE M { I 11 ¥ M(High Value Discount Ticket , ST
FPABART), XM AR , SR WX E R(East Bay Value Pass , ] #County
Connection, Tri Delta Transit, WestCATRIWheels#3$60 8 K).

EWHYDAES W L@t www.bart goviguideltitievil . HMW510-464-6752, ANWE
# : fares@bartgov, MR A MR2015F9430H,

s
> BARY Py 4 S O AT
W ae BARY ot o s et e g i oty
Uty Cammion T S o, ontint e e
St

% i ¥
e e LT
1 ot i i, g y
O R ot ey S B Y S S e

A 1 30 g 0,

I o S8 s
Sy G St B Gt

Photo of posted public notice on
BART Plus bus operator.

28





APPENDIX D. PUBLIC NOTICE POSTED ON BART TICKET VENDING MACHINES

" BART Plus Tickets to be Discontin ed
- dejara de aceptar el boleto BART Plu
 BART Plus ﬁ!Eﬂ%F%

Eﬁettmjmm'i 201&ﬂu8mﬁshtiztwimlambempwdmhmmm

* BART Plus ticket users can switch to Clipper® to pay their fares. Clipper® is currently accepted on BART
and will be accepted before January 1, 2016 on the following buses: County Connection, Tri Delta Transit,
WestCAT andWheels

« Cipper® offers these discounted fare products: BART High Value Discount Ticket fualid only on BART), bus
passes, and the East Bay Value Pass ($60 monthly pass accepted on County Connection, Tri Delta Transit,
‘WestCAT and Wheels).

o comment on this change, go to wwwebart goviguidettitlewi, call 510-464-6752, or e-mail: fares@bart gov.

Comments are accepted through September 30, 2015.

A partir del 17 de enero de 2016, e boleto BART Plus dejara de ser aceptado en los autobuses y en BART.

# Los usuarios de bobetns BART Plus pueden cambiar a Clipper® para pagar sus recormidos. BART
actualmente acepta Clipper® y antes del 1° de enero de 2016 la tarjeta Clipper sera aceptada en los
siguientes autobuses: County Connection, Tri Delta Transit, WestCAT y Wheels.

» (lipper® ofrece estas tarifas con descuento: BART High Vialue Discount Ticket {valido solo en BART, pases
de autobis y East Bay Value Pass (pase mensual de $60 aceptado en County Connection, Tri Delta Transit,
WestCAT y Wheels).

Para hacer un comentarnio acerca de este cambio, visite wwwobart gowguidestiievi, llame al 510-464-6752

o envie un e-mail a: fares@bart.gov. Se aceptaran comentarios hasta el 30 de septiembre de 2015.

B20icE1 A1EE | ANE NS /RENERBARTISTHESBART PusEN,

= BART PlusE N0 fl & T & FiCipper* E X WM. Clipper®* BN ARAMBART , E£2016% 18
1ENFTETRLNEE - County Connecion, Tri Delta Transit, WesiCAT . LB Wheels,
» Clipper* B8t B FFHINMES - BARTH MM 708 R(High Value Discount Ticket . ST
BART), AMAR . HENREEANR Bay Value Pass , ﬁmmw“m

Tri Delta Transit, WesiCA AR).

EREIBNER W Efwew bart gowiguide/iitlevili s, HR5104646752  RREEE -
fares@bart.gov. SRS R EMA2015595308,

Photo of public notice posted on
BART ticket vending machine.

29





APPENDIX E.

SURVEY RESPONDENT AND COMMENTS DATABASE

BART Plus
Rider?

Survey
Method

Minority?

Low-
Income?

Comments

Yes

Paper

No

No

I’ll miss its convenience—one
card for both BART and bus.
Now I'll have to purchase a
separate County Connection
Commuter Card because
Clipper doesn’t have that. Also,
the Commuter Card is not
unlimited rides like with BART
Plus.

Yes

Paper

Yes

No

Hope you don’t discontinue
because for people who ride
BART and bus it is very
convenient and easier to get
back and forth to work.

Yes

Rider did not
complete a
survey, but
left a voice

mail

Unknown

Unknown

The caller asked why BART
Plus was being eliminated
because it has been economical
for her to use for years (BART
staff was unable to respond to
the caller, because she did not
leave a name or call back
number).

No

Online

No

No

BART Plus was a great
convenience in its day. Would
be great to have Clipper
incorporate one pass that is
good on all of the transit
agencies like BART Plus did in
the beginning.

No

Online

No

Yes

No comment provided.

No

Paper

Yes

No

Keep BART Plus. It allowed
me to have a bus pass and
BART fare. Respondent
identified as not having used
BART Plus for over a year.

No

Paper

Yes

No

No comment provided.

30







BART

Balboa Park Station Modernization Phase 2
BART Board
December 3, 2015

Balboa Park Station Modernization





Process + Partnhers

Objectives

* Increase safety + security

 Enhance access + accessibility

* Improve transit function + customer experience
City Partnership

« SFMTA, SFCTA, Supervisor Avalos
Significant, Ongoing Community Engagement

 Balboa Park CAC / D11 Council ~ Outer Mission, Excelsior, Ingelside,
Westwood Park, Miraloma Heights, Sunnyside, Oceanview, and
Balboa Terraces neighborhoods

Funding Sources
e SFPropK

e MTC Lifeline

e BART Prop 1B

Balboa Park Station Modernization — Phase 2 2






Station Area Context

G s 1 , ? m-. P
*.__....5-5__ MEMFFWMW ~

. .E -v-r_- § i ...E_g_-
R ;}:-TL_-L.--—--—-S

e eSS

7 ] “MUNLMAINTENANCE YARD ~ - Fe=x

- - 3 “

QeI () USRI R

e -
S I

_ _ * Major intermodal hub with 3 Muni Metro, 7 Muni
Balboa Park Station Modernization — Phase 2 bus lines + 3 shuttles ~ 46% transfers to BART






Earlier Phases - Completed

New vertical circulation / emergency egress
Expanded faregates
New entrance / walkway to Ocean Avenue

Balboa Park Station Modernization — Phase 2 4





Key Issues — Phase 2

Et

""“”ﬂ‘u | I

e Station area lacks direct, accessible + safe connection
* Muni platform is not accessible

e Difficult transfers between systems

* Aging roof structure

*Low lighting levels in station concourse

Balboa Park Station Modernization — Phase 2 5





Project Description o - - : Project Benefits

1.Accessible walkway through the = - ’ « Provide safe crossing along the narrow
concrete planter from the Westside § : - pathway + Muni tracks

Walkway to the Phase 2 Project

_ | : : - Continuous accessible walkway from
2.Accessible walkway to/from BART T . | 5= BART + Muni Metro boarding area to
+ Muni Metro boarding areas . Ocean Avenue

4.New roof structure / ' Metro platform to better accommodate

5.Underground LED lighting | - disabled patrons
6.Clerestory glazing 5", o e ] Brighter station for our customers






T i s

eyl . @ .

llp =T ==

- 5 TR , v B T
- aten R & "-.'__._ | ¥ o :‘-1,, ‘\, ¥

Ay Sk A f A i
- £ - ? . ¥y e { i
o e B gy - e . b - oy |

Muni accessible platform “;_h_ﬁ;,,f :
- L T,

* Brighten station concourse with LED lighting and clerestory glazing

Balboa Park Station Modernization — Phase 2 7





Next Steps

Station Modernization Planning Underway

e Upgrade, transform aging station

 Develop future phases, incl. state of good repair needs,
platform lighting, vertical circulation, Geneva Avenue
canopies, placemaking/plaza improvements, etc.

Request Board Action on Phase 2 Eastside Project

* Project closely coordinated with SFMTA’s Rail Replacement
Project ~ Timing is critical

Balboa Park Station Modernization — Phase 2 8





		Balboa Park Station Modernization Phase 2�BART Board�December 3, 2015

		Process + Partners

		Station Area Context

		Earlier Phases - Completed

		Key Issues – Phase 2

		Balboa Park Station - Phase 2

		Proposed Investments - Phase 2 

		Next Steps




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors DATE: November 25, 2015
FROM: Director, District 7
SUBJECT: Inclusionary Housing Policy

In February 2013, I introduced a Roll Call for Introduction (RCI) item (Control #12-682) that
requested a “Board agenda topic to discuss an inclusionary [housing] policy for development at
and adjacent to BART Stations.” To close out this RCI, I will introduce at the December 3, 2015
Board of Directors meeting a policy recommendation on affordable housing for the Board of
Directors’ consideration in adopting.

Background
On April 24, 2015, staff produced a report that summarized what peer agencies across the

country do to facilitate affordable housing on property developments at their rail stations;
BART’s existing practices, including its current and planned developments at its stations and the
share of the residential units at those developments that are affordable; and staff’s opinion on
establishing an inclusionary housing policy for developments at BART Stations. In the
conclusion of their report, staff suggest that different market conditions can make affordable
housing more or less attainable, so setting affordable housing requirements “may render
development [in some areas] infeasible.” They, therefore, recommend that “an approach to
affordable housing that is more nuanced [than a percent set-aside] can help BART balance its
many goals with respect to increasing ridership, revenue, transit-oriented development on and off
BART property, and supporting community revitalization.” The report is attached to this memo
for your reference.

Discussion

The Bay Area region has an affordable housing crisis and longtime residents are being displaced
or having to move to locations very distant from their workplace to afford housing expenses.
The region clearly needs more affordable housing and some interests feel BART, as a regional
agency, has a responsibility to ensure affordable housing within its development portfolio.

What is more pertinent to BART is the correlation between income level and transit usage.
Numerous studies demonstrate that lower income individuals, particularly those who are transit-
dependent, who live near transit are many times more likely to make use of the transit services
for both commute and non-commute trips than other income levels. While middle- and upper-
income persons may make use of the transit option(s) for commute travel, studies show that they
are less likely to make use of the transit for non-commute purposes. Therefore, by having an
inclusionary housing policy for developments at our stations, we’ll be able to house populations
that will generate more ridership for BART while simultaneously giving them greater access to
transportation that they may not otherwise have for their travel needs.





Other Considerations

While BART can establish requirements for developments on its properties, localities (i.e., cities
and counties) have final say on any zoning standards for any property within their jurisdiction,
including whether and how a property development will meet the locality’s affordable housing
allocation requirements. Hence, if a locality’s policies are not consistent with an inclusionary
policy BART has for developments, the development would not be able to progress without
either a zoning exception by the locality or inclusionary policy exception by BART.

In addition, per the report provided by staff, there may be some instances where market or other
conditions do not allow for an affordable housing requirement to be achievable by a developer.

Proposal
Based on precedent set in 2014 with Assembly Bill 2135 (AB 2135) and my discussions with

affordable housing developers and stakeholders, it is my belief that a 20% set-aside requirement
would be an appropriate target for affordable housing in developments at BART stations.
Considering this and the aforementioned factors, 1 propose the following motion be adopted by
the BART Board of Directors:

“It shall be the policy of the District that, to the extent not prohibited by law, the District include
a provision in any Request for Qualifications (RFQ) or Request for Proposals (RFP) relating to
proposed development projects at BART stations that, to the extent possible, 20% of any
proposed housing units shall be allocated for affordable housing, and if the party submitting the
RFQ or RFP determines that goal is not possible, that party shall provide a statement why the
goal cannot be attained. On a project-by-project basis, the General Manager or his/her
designee may request an exception to this Policy if staff determines it is inappropriate or
improper for a specific project. This Policy, or the exception thereto, shall be considered in any
Project specific discussions.”

Zakhary Mallett

ce: Board Appointed Officers
Chief Planning and Development Officer
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff
Department Manager, Real Estate and Property Development

Enclosure





Affordable Housing at BART Stations

BART Planning, Development & Construction
April 24, 2015





Introduction

The Board has requested a discussion on an inclusionary policy requiring a share of
affordable housing development at and adjacent to BART stations. However, this report will
only discuss such a policy for BART land as part of the District’s TOD program. The District
does not have the authority to introduce an inclusionary housing policy on land not owned by
the District.

This report defines affordable housing, provides background on the District’s transit-oriented
development (TOD) policies and program, provides context on the current housing market
and need for additional housing, both market rate and affordable, within the Bay Area,
describes how other transit agencies in the United States are addressing the need for
affordable housing, and provides a number of implications for the BART Board of Directors
to consider.

Affordable Housing Definitions and State Policies

The US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) defines affordable housing
as “housing for which the occupant(s) is/are paying no more than 30 percent of his or her
income for gross housing costs, including utilities.” Affordability levels for subsidized units
qualify in one of four categories - “Moderate, Low, Very Low, or Extremely Low” - based
on the share of regional median income or Area Median Income (AMI) defined by the State
Housing and Community Development department (HCD) for various household sizes.
Households living in Affordable Housing must fall below these income limits, and housing
prices are set at 30% of these limits. Table 1 below provides data for a family of four within
each of the four counties served by BART.”

Table 1: 2015 Income Requirements for a Family of Four to Qualify for Affordable Housing

Area Median  Extremely Low Very Low Moderate

Income (AMI) - Income (30% Income (50% Low Income Income (120%

4 Person AMI) AMI) (80% AMI) AMI)

Alameda $93,500 $28,050 $46,750 $71.600 $112,200
Contra Costa $93,500 $28,050 $46,750 $71,600 $112,200
San Francisco $103,000 $35,150 $58.,600 $93.850 $123,600
San Mateo $103,000 $35,150 $58.,600 $93,850 $123,600

The Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) is a state-mandated process to identify the
total future number of housing units by affordability level that each jurisdiction must
accommodate in its Housing Element. The California Department of Housing and
Community Development (HCD) identifies the total housing need for the San Francisco Bay
Area for an eight-year period. As directed by SB375 (and other laws), the Association of Bay
Area Governments (ABAG) distributes this forecasted need to local governments in a way
that is consistent with the development pattern included in the Sustainable Communities

http://www.huduser.org/portal/glossary/glossary a.html
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/hpd/hre/rep/state/incNote.html - effective April 2015






Strategy (SCS) known as Plan Bay Area. Jurisdictions are required to update Housin%
Elements to show how they plan to accommodate their portion of the region’s housing need.
For the eight-year period of 2014-2022, the final RHNA by county is depicted in Table 2
below. The table indicates the amount of additional affordable and market-rate housing
needed in each county over the 2014-2022 time period. Of the additional housing needs,
roughly 57 percent fall in to the affordable category, reflecting the strong need for additional
affordable housing in the Bay Area.

Table 2: Plan Bay Area — Regional Housing Needs Allocation

Regional Housing Need Allocation (2014-2022)*

Very Low Low Moderate Aumie Pestent
County 0-50% 51-80% 81-120% Moderate Total Affordable (up
120% + to 120%)
Alameda 9,912 6,604 7,924 19,596 44,036 56%
Contra Costa 5,264 3,086 3,496 8,784 20,630 57%
San Francisco 6,234 4,639 5,460 12,536 28,869 57%
San Mateo 4,595 2,507 2,830 6,486 16,418 60%
Totals 26,005 16,836 19,710 47,402 109,953 57%

* http://www.abag.ca.gov/planning/housingneeds/pdfs/Final%20RHNA%20(2014-2022).pdf

Overview of “Inclusionary Zoning”

Producing affordable housing in what is often the most expensive housing market in the
nation obviously takes substantial financial resources. In the Bay Area, affordable housing is
primarily produced by two sectors: non-profit housing developers who build subsidized units
through a complex layering of local, state, and federal grant and loan sources; and market-
rate developers operating in accordance with the inclusionary housing requirements of local
jurisdictions.

Affordable Housing Through Grants and Other Subsidies

Non-profit and other affordable housing developers often cobble together a wide variety of
sources of funding and financing to build affordable housing. It is not uncommon for
subsidized affordable housing to pull together 10-20 different sources of funds. The most
common source of funds is the Low Income Housing Tax Credit, which is a federal funding
source allocated by the state through an extremely competitive process. Up until recently, the
second most common source of funds in California was the Redevelopment affordable
housing set aside. Redevelopment agencies in California were dissolved in February 2012 as
part of the Governor’s remedy to the State’s $25.4 billion budget shortfall in 2010. As a
result, the second largest funding source for affordable housing disappeared practically
overnight. This reduction of funds has seriously affected the ability to build and maintain
affordable housing.

3 http://www.abag.ca.gov/planning/housingneeds/index.html





Not only is the ability to secure available funds extremely competitive, many of the
opportunities to apply for the funds are annual only, creating schedule delays and
uncertainties for projects requiring an affordable component. If an applicant does not receive
the funding it needs for that year, the project could die right then, or be delayed for years
until funding is awarded to the project.

Affordable Housing Through Inclusionary Requirements or In-Lieu Fees

Inclusionary affordable housing programs are generally dependent on a strong housing
market. Inclusionary housing programs require market rate developers to include a minimum
percentage of income-restricted units as a requirement to build. The provision of affordable
housing within a project would reduce the number of for-profit units and the associated
return on investment. In some jurisdictions (e.g., Walnut Creek), the developer can opt to pay
an Affordable Housing Impact Fee to the City rather than include affordable units in their
project. Payment of an in-lieu fee versus providing affordable units in a project is normally
reviewed by developers to assess the financial impact on their construction and operation of a
residential project. Developers will normally select the option that maximizes their return on
investment. The District would need to be considerate of this type of local policy; stipulating
an inclusionary percentage for BART property in jurisdictions where an in-lieu fee is
acceptable could result in the District’s approach being in conflict with a local jurisdiction’s

policy.

For market-rate residential and commercial projects, both investors and developers
commonly share the goal of profit maximization. For affordable housing deals, the targeted
lower-income households reduce or eliminate opportunities for the same level of profit as in
a market-rate project. The reduced ability to earn a profit has several implications in that
investors who are purely yield-driven are less likely to participate in this market and the deals
are likely to be much more complicated.

The ability for local jurisdictions in California to implement inclusionary zoning
requirements for rental units was hampered in 2009 through a state appellate court ruling in
Palmer vs. Los Angeles. The case found that requiring developers to maintain income-
restricted rental units through zoning mechanisms amounted to rent control on new
development, and violated the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (1995). As a result most
Jjurisdictions now can only zone to require affordable units in ownership housing
developments,* or collect an in-lieu fee for affordable housing. Affordable housing advocates
and cities are conducting ongoing work to pass state legislation that would modify Costa-
Hawkins. If BART were to consider an inclusionary requirement, further research would be
needed on the potential application of the Palmer case to this policy.

4 The ability to require affordable units in ownership residential projects is the subject of a pending court

case, Building Industry Association vs. City of San Jose.

3





The Growing Link Between Transit and Affordable Housing in California

There has been a growing body of work in the past several years on the relationship between
transit and affordable housing, with the terms “equitable TOD” and “Mixed-Income TOD”
commonly used to indicate inclusion of affordable housing development in areas near transit.
This field has emerged in part as a response to the growing understanding that residents will
place a price premium on living in transit rich areas, and in some cases this has caused a
reduction in affordability and concern about existing residents getting “priced out™ of the
most transit-rich, accessible areas.

The transit, housing, and development communities are seeking ways to develop new tools to
respond to this issue, and California has been one of the leading states for innovation in this
field. For example:

State Proposition 1C funded affordable housing projects in location efficient areas,
including near high quality transit stops. Now entering its fourth and final round,
Proposition 1C has partially funded a number of affordable housing developments on
BART property, including development at MacArthur, Fruitvale, South Hayward and
San Leandro BART stations.

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC’s) investment in the Transit-
Oriented Affordable Housing Fund (TOAH Fund) was the first time that a
Metropolitan Planning Organization reinforced that the affordable housing crisis and
jobs-housing mismatch was indeed a transportation-related issue, and new sources of
financing were needed to help affordable housing developers close financing gaps
associated with price premiums near transit and with the longer holding periods often
associated with complex infill development. As of 2014, four projects have been
allocated a combined $15.9 million from the $50 million TOAH Fund resulting in
over 500 residential units with 78% affordable.

20% of California’s Cap and Trade Auction Proceeds are allocated to an Affordable
Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC) Program, designed to explicitly
encourage affordable housing near transit. The guidelines for this program are clearly
linked to increasing the amount of affordable housing near transit as a way to
implement the regions’ sustainable communities strategies and reducing greenhouse
gas emissions (GHG). The TOD aspect of this program requires affordable housing
developments to be coupled with transportation improvements that reduce emissions.
Again, this program is an acknowledgement of the strong relationship between
transportation/GHG and the need for affordable housing. BART was a joint applicant
with five affordable housing projects in the first round of the notice of funding
availability.

As discussed above, the Sustainable Communities Strategies mandated under SB375
and AB32 —to reduce GHG from cars and light trucks through combined regional
transportation and land use plans — establish new targets for affordable housing in
individual communities. Each region approached its SCS differently; in the Bay Area,

4





Plan Bay Area established higher goals for affordable housing in areas near transit
and rich in jobs. Further, over 70 percent of new growth is forecasted to occur in
existing urbanized areas near transit known as “Priority Development Areas™ (PDAs).
To support cities accommodating a higher share of growth, transportation and other
infrastructure and planning funds are also being focused in cities with PDAs. Again,
Plan Bay Area and the SCS process in general reflects the growing relationship and
blurred line between transportation, land use, and affordable housing policy.

BART’s activities as related to affordable housing should reflect on regional and statewide
tools and the body of work on “equitable TOD™ or “mixed-income TOD.” In other words,
any affordable housing policy BART might adopt should be integrated with BART's TOD
and land use related activities, rather than in isolation as a “layered-on™ policy. In
considering the role that BART should play in supporting affordable housing in the Bay
Area, BART staff therefore evaluated national transit agencies experiences with inclusionary
requirements, as well as the ways in which BART’s current TOD and land use policies and
actions support the State and Regional policies described above.

Survey of Affordable Housing Guidelines of Major U.S. Transit Agencies

Staff researched other major transit agencies within the country to determine if those
agencies have included affordable housing, also known as inclusionary housing, criteria
within their TOD programs, and if so, how they are being implemented. The results of this
survey are summarized in Appendix A.

Of the ten transit agencies surveyed with respect to policy inclusion of affordable housing,
two - the Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit Authority (MARTA), has an inclusionary
policy. In April 2015, the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LA
Metro) Board considered Staff’s recommendation to pursue a different type of strategy to
support affordable housing, including;S

e Establishing a 30% systemwide affordability target that could be achieved across
multiple sites;

e Setting up a public-private fund similar to the Bay Area’s Transit Oriented Affordable
Housing Fund to help finance affordable housing projects:;’

* Discounting ground leases for affordable housing projects on LA Metro property by
up to 30% off market rates.

The LA Metro Board will take action on this item at a future date.

. For more information on the Staff Report and Board Discussion, see

http:/la.streetsblog.org/2015/04/02/metro-takes-another-step-forward-in-effort-to-build-and-preserve-
affordable-housing-at-transit-hubs/

6 It is important to keep in mind that Los Angeles Metro is both a transit agency and a congestion
management agency, that allocates STP and CMAQ funds for the County. Thus it partially serves a role that
MTC serves in the Bay Area in allocating regional transportation funds.






All other transit agencies pursue development on their land, including affordable housing, in
keeping with local land use jurisdictions’ affordable housing policies. There are several
reasons that other agencies may not have adopted a systemwide inclusionary policy, some of
which are shared by BART:

Variable Market Strength. Inclusionary policies best work in locations with
consistently strong real estate markets, where developers will be able to make
projects financially viable and still accommodate a minimum share of income
restricted units. However the regional nature of BART is not amenable to this model;
some cities will have strong enough markets to accommodate an inclusionary
requirement while development would be rendered infeasible by such a requirement
in other cities. Therefore a systemwide policy would be too blunt of an instrument to
result in successful high density, affordable TOD at all stations.

Ridership Targets. For most agencies, the primary goals in utilizing land is to
enhance transit ridership and generate non-farebox revenue. In the case of joint
development the focus would therefore be on encouraging development that will
generate the greatest ridership and revenue. However to the extent that systemwide
policies or requirements render development infeasible, riders would ultimately be
lost because development could not occur and revenue would not be realized.

Local Politics. As with BART, other agencies strive to maintain constructive
relationships with partner local jurisdictions. In some cases, jurisdictions may not be
supportive of affordable housing developments and therefore may not approve the
projects. If an agency has an inclusionary policy in place, and requires affordable
housing regardless of community approval, no project will be built until the
community is supportive.

Despite these challenges, other agencies do pursue activities in support of affordable housing.
Some agencies, including BART, have a higher share of affordable housing production
through these activities than they might otherwise achieve with an inclusionary requirement
alone. These activities include:

Strong partnerships with cities. Ongoing work with cities to help them achieve their
affordable housing targets, by establishing requests for proposals for joint
development that set city goals.

Strong partnerships with affordable housing developers. Ongoing relationships with
developers who specialize in securing affordable housing finance resources such as
Low Income Housing Tax Credits.

Proactive Work to Secure State and Federal Resources for projects. Subsidized
affordable housing development is usually financed through a combination of many
sources of funding, at both the state and federal scales. Those agencies that have been
most successful in linking affordable housing and transit — such as Massachusetts Bay
Transit Authority (MBTA) and King County transit in the Seattle Area — are
embedded in a different level of government (state and county, respectively, in the

6





above examples) or work closely with a different level of government to secure these
types of resources for their projects. With growing interest at the state and regional
levels in ensuring affordable housing is located near transit, these types of
opportunities may be growing for BART, even as the overall pool of funds available
for affordable housing has plummeted significantly in the state of California.

e Bay Area Collaborative Approach to Pursuing TOD. Recently, a number of
organizations have established a TOD implementation working group to develop
innovative cross-sector strategies to encourage development that supports the
implementation of Plan Bay Area. Organizations currently involved in the effort
include MTC, the Bay Area Regional Collaborative (coordinates the planning efforts
of MTC, ABAG, Bay Area Air Quality Management District, and Bay Conservation
and Development Commission), BART, TransForm, Enterprise Community Partners,
the Low Income Investment Fund, and the Great Communities Collaborative
(represented by the San Francisco Foundation). One of the initial activities of the
Collaborative - in recognition that affordable housing within the Bay Area is clearly
needed and that the aforementioned Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities Program funded by 20% of California’s Cap and Trade Auction
Proceeds - is to identify and work with communities that want to pursue affordable
housing. The intent is to examine development opportunities within one-half mile of
transit stations to enable affordable housing currently supported by the real estate
market to be implemented while still protecting land within the half-mile radius of
transit stations for greater density development.

Current BART TOD Activities
TOD Policy

The District’s TOD Policy (see Appendix B) was adopted in 2005 and includes the following
goals:

A. Increase transit ridership and enhance quality of life at and around BART
stations by encouraging and supporting high quality transit-oriented
development within walking distance of BART stations.

B. Increase transit-oriented development projects on and off BART property
through creative planning and development partnerships with local
communities.

C. Enhance the stability of BART's financial base through the value capture
strategies of transit-oriented development.

D. Reduce the access mode share of the automobile by enhancing multi-modal

Of particular note are the following strategies that would have a bearing upon the
applicability of an affordable housing inclusionary policy:





¢ Form sustainable partnerships with local jurisdictions, other transit and regional
agencies, and the private sector to implement development plans on and off
District property. [Process Strategy]

e In concert with local jurisdictions, employ community involvement techniques
that reflect where communities are in the planning and development continuum.
[Process Strategy]

e Evaluate the financial performance of proposed projects based on sound
financial parameters and the ability to generate transit ridership, fare revenue,
lease payments, parking revenues, grant resources, other financial participation,
and/or cost savings. Consider the opportunity cost to the District of delaying
development opportunities. [Financial Strategy]

BART’s current TOD program consists of projects completed, approved (in various phases
of implementation), and in negotiations. Table 3 below presents data on projects in the
approved and completed categories. Total development consists of 547,000 square feet of
office, 144,590 square feet of retail, and 2,339 residential units, of which 30%, are affordable
units.

Table 3: Summary of Development on BART Property to Date

Product
Status Station Housing Affordable Office Retail
(units) Percentage (sf) (sf)

Completed Castro Valley 96 100% - -
Fruitvale 47 19% 27,000 37,000
Pleasant Hill 422 20% - 35,590

Ashby 0 0% 80,000 -
565 33% 107,000 72,590
Approved Walnut Creek 596 10% - 18,500
West Dublin/Pleasanton : 0 0% 430,000 10,000
MacArthur 624 17% 5,000 42,500
San Leandro - | 200 100% 5,000 1,000

South Hayward - | 354 43% - -
1,774 29% 440,000 72,000

Other Relevant Policies
In addition to the 2005 TOD Policy, there are a number of additional policies and activities
that will have financial implications on development on BART land that warrant

consideration while addressing the inclusionary housing topic:

1. Payment of prevailing wage for construction on BART property





2. The replacement of some or all of BART parking displaced by development after

undertaking a comprehensive access study

Property disposition through ground leasing of BART land rather than sale

Execution of a Project Stabilization Agreement

5. General requirements for developers to build with a transit-supportive design,
including an integrated street grid that supports pedestrian activity, and locates
parking in less visible locations to create a transit-oriented environment, including the
provision of placemaking elements (e.g., paseos, public squares) which cost money to
build and maintain and do not generally generate income for the developer.

6. BART’s Portfolio Review (underway) will set a more effective investment strategy to
maximize densities and financial return on BART property based on current and
forecasted market characteristics.

=

The first four of these policies establish other requirements for developers partnering with
BART on development, and render BART development already more challenging or
complicated than development on adjacent properties. They require ongoing evaluation of the
financial implications of developer requirements, as described in the case of Lake Merritt,
below.

The final item — the portfolio analysis - is examining the District’s real property to prioritize
BART sites in terms of potential for residential development (multifamily rental products)
and commercial office development, with an emphasis on determining whether high-rise
development is likely to be viable now or in the future. At issue is how the District can
achieve optimal use of its land assets with consideration of real estate value and ridership
from new development as well as the potential timing of different types of development. One
of the key questions being addressed by the analysis is whether the District’s financial and
operational performance is optimized by allowing lower density development to proceed in
the near-term (i.e., build to market), or by waiting for a certain period of time for economic
and other conditions to improve such that higher density development may be achieved (i.e.,
build to a vision). The inclusion of an affordable housing requirement on the District’s
development activities has not been taken into account in the Portfolio Review, but would
have a material impact on the analysis.

BART’s Current Experience with Affordable Housing

Planning for affordable housing at and around BART stations is governed by the local land
use jurisdiction’s station area planning activity, which takes into consideration the local
jurisdiction’s land use goals and objectives, community concerns, and the transit agency’s
goals and objectives. BART staff work closely with the cities to both support station area
planning efforts, and to develop requirements for development that most closely meet the
vision of station area plans and BART s own objectives.

For the District, the increased costs related to affordable housing usually mean a reduction in
the revenue the District can expect from a TOD ground lease on its real property.
Developers will often make an offer on real property using a land residual approach. This
approach, in basic terms, calculates land value by first estimating net income earned by a
property and then subtracting costs attributed to the improvements, leaving a residual value

9





attributable to the land. The reduced income from the affordable units in a TOD project is
taken out of the land value, thereby reducing the value the District can expect from its real
property. This reduction in value due to the reduction in income from affordable units may
be considered a gift of public funds, or at the very least, a subsidy by the District.

The District’s Lake Merritt property can provide an illustration of this dynamic recognizing
that the cost to construct an affordable housing unit commonly exceeds unit value, given
income-restricted rents and sale prices. Appendix C contains a Lake Merritt Station Area
Plan — Community Benefit Cost Review (2/18/14) prepared for BART by Economic &
Systems Planning (EPS). The Lake Merritt BART site is estimated to support up to 413 units
in low-rise construction or 960 units in high-rise construction. At this density of
development, BART’s property might support between 60 and 150 affordable units,
assuming 15 percent of the total residential units on the site (if fully built as residential rather
than office space). The subsidy to produce these units is estimated at $14 million to $35
million, assuming the units are priced for households with income that is 80 percent of Area
Median Income. BART’s property value may be reduced by these amounts, compared to
what might otherwise be achievable if the full program could be built for market-rate
housing. Comparing this reduction to the overall $12.2 million estimated value of BART’s
land based on recent transactions, it is likely that the affordable housing subsidy required to
supply 15 percent of the units for low income households would eliminate the underlying
land value of the BART property.

Recommendations

The challenge of adopting any wholesale policy with respect to real estate development
across the BART district is that it will apply in all markets, whether weak or strong. In some
areas, the market can absorb these additional requirements and development will be built
anyway. In other areas, requirements may render development infeasible.

BART already has a number of requirements on its properties as outlined above, from
replacement parking to prevailing wage. Any policy requires an evaluation of the tradeoffs
involved: is the end objective worth potentially losing out on some development projects that
would become too complex, or on BART’s ground lease revenue being reduced?

Given the variety of communities with BART stations, an approach to affordable housing
that is more nuanced can help BART balance its many goals with respect to increasing
ridership, revenue, transit-oriented development on and off BART property, and supporting
community revitalization. BART’s overall practice to date with respect to affordable housing
— and transit-oriented development as a whole — relies on understanding the unique
conditions in any community. BART’s current TOD Policy reinforces the mandate for BART
staff to work closely with individual communities and partner with communities and others
as needed to best achieve TOD.

However, BART staff are engaged in a number of activities to help ensure that the District is
pursuing transit-oriented development as proactively as possible, and affordable housing
could be considered in a similarly nuanced, but proactive way. The Real Estate Portfolio

10





Review is the first step in creating a strategic framework for the development of BART
property that is informed by unique market conditions. Affordable housing could be
integrated into this framework, and staff could set targets in concert with local jurisdictions
for affordable housing at station areas with strong markets, with more limited targets in
moderate to weak markets requiring more of a catalyst for TOD to occur in general.

If the Board desires to establish a deeper commitment to affordable housing, it should
consider the complex layering of policies already in place and their implications for
development. A commitment to the implementation of Plan Bay Area — as an augmentation
and reinforcement of the current TOD Policy — may be a more appropriate approach. This
would be particularly appropriate since Plan Bay Area shares many of BART’s goals
including shifting Bay Area residents and workers to transit, increasing densities near BART
stations, and accommodating residents of all incomes in housing.

In cooperation with the local land use jurisdictions, BART can provide diversified housing in
their TOD projects by setting reasonable affordable housing goals that developers can
finance and entitle without undue delays, and still meet the community’s housing needs. The
District can accomplish this objective on a case-by-case basis by addressing the topic when
the Board considers authorizing development solicitations for BART property. In some cases
the District’s objective would be for office development rather than housing removing the
need for an inclusionary objective.

It is important when considering inclusionary housing restrictions to not price out the market,
which varies by sub-market, and could have the negative impact of not allowing any units to
be built. It is also worth considering the land value impacts to the District to the extent that
the affordable units require subsidy. It is the District’s responsibility to maximize the
benefits it provides to the region, and its real estate is a strategic financial asset that is an
important part of this tradeoff.

11





APPENDIX A: Summary of Transit Agency Affordable Housing Policies
1. Denver Regional Transportation District (RTD)

Where the sale or lease of RTD land is being anticipated for residential uses, affordable
housing requirements will be defined by the local government with jurisdiction over any
proposed development and may include rental or for-sale housing that is deed-restricted to
maintain long-term affordability for a range of households with varying incomes. Prior to
issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP) or entering into negotiations for a land transaction
involving potential residential uses, RTD and the local governmental entity will collaborate
to evaluate the subject parcel for a potential affordability goal. The developer of TOD is
responsible for the actual building and financing of the affordable housing.

During the recent housing recession, RTD found it difficult to attract developers able to
finance such requirements; however, as the economy improves, they are finding more
developers responding to the RFPs. RTD did specifically note that its business is not
affordable housing, but it will support it if required by the local jurisdictions.

2. Los Angeles County Municipal Transportation Authority (LA Metro)

LA Metro’s TOD policy evaluates the affordability levels of each joint development project
on a case-by-case basis. It requires developers to comply with local jurisdiction policies
which often balance the size of the project, community concerns, the specific site and other
factors when making a decision. Roughly 25% of LA Metro housing units have been
affordable, many of these as part of larger joint development projects in partnership with the
Cities of Los Angeles or Pasadena that have a fairly robust affordable housing requirement
and have had involvement from local redevelopment authorities (now dissolved).

Presently LA Metro is considering further actions to support housing affordability in Los
Angeles county, including establishing a systemwide 30% affordability target, discounting
agency owned land by up to 30% for affordable housing projects, and establishing a fund
similar to the Transit Oriented Affordable Housing Fund (TOAH Fund) in the Bay Area.

3. Massachusetts Bay Transit Authority (MBTA)

The MBTA has a TOD program that includes a high quality mix of uses and meets state
public policy goals for sustainable development and TOD, while generating economic
development. Like RTD, where the sale or lease of MBTA land is being anticipated for
residential uses, affordable housing is defined by local governments with jurisdiction over
any proposed development. At times creative financing for these projects can take the form
of taking back mortgages on MBTA-owned land that allow land takedowns in phases.

4. Chicago Transit Authority (CTA) and Chicago Commuter Rail Authority (Metra)

Both CTA and Metra have limited vacant land available, as some of both Authorities’
stations are owned and operated by municipalities or master tenants. Development is through
negotiations with the local jurisdictions, with direction from Ward Aldermen, including any

12





affordable housing requirements. Often, increased density is allowed in projects in order to
afford to obtain any affordable housing goals.

5. Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA)

WMATA embraces smart growth and joint development, and aggressively seeks partners to
develop TOD on its properties. WMATA recognizes the importance of providing affordable
housing at its stations and its policy states that all developers proposing residential projects
on WMATA-owned property shall comply with the minimum affordable housing
requirements of the jurisdiction where the property is located. Also, to maximize value to
WMATA. developers are encouraged to seek creative sources of financing, such as low-
income housing tax credits, grants and other Federal and local funding programs, to achieve
any local jurisdiction affordability requirements.

6. Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART)

DART relies on local jurisdiction land use policies which include affordable housing goals.
DART’s TOD program includes an “intensity of development™ goal with residential uses at a
minimum of 24 dwelling units per acre average over the designated station area at final
build-out to provide greater density near the station and less density at the periphery. This
density allows DART to comply with the affordable housing goals of the local jurisdictions
as costs are decreased per unit with increased density.

7. San Diego Municipal Transportation System (MTS)

The Joint Use and Development of Property Policy of MTS addresses its Board’s intention to
maximize the potential of its real estate assets consistent with transportation goals and
community development objectives. MTS does not have affordable housing criteria; rather,
it relies on and supports the requirements of the local jurisdictions.

8. Seattle Sound Transit

Sound Transit is a relatively new and unique transit agency. The agency was voted into
existence as a special purpose district in 1986 and the first segment of light rail started
revenue service in 2009. The voters must approve all agency programs, and the agency is
currently allowed to only purchase property for transit purposes. A large part of the agency’s
financial plan is the sale of their excess property.

Affordable housing is a significant regional and political topic in the Seattle area. The topic
is that many people there believe that the agency should give away their excess property for
affordable housing, while the agency fundamentally disagrees with this thinking. They
haven’t finished building their transit lines and they need every dollar that can be generated
by selling their excess property for this purpose. The residents that now have light rail want
place-making, including affordable housing, around the existing stations, while the residents
without light rail want the agency to complete the transit lines before TOD occurs. Their
Board is split on affordable housing, and to date, Sound Transit is still struggling with this
issue while making completing their transit lines the first and foremost priority.

13





9. Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA)

Land use authority for VTA TOD projects rests with the local cities and Santa Clara County.
VTA has formed partnerships with local jurisdictions to implement their TOD program and
ensure that transit-oriented development occurs. Several cities have amended their zoning
codes and regulations to include provisions for transit supportive land uses at existing and
planned rail stations. The local affordable housing policy is applied to VTA’s TOD projects.

10. Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit Authority (MARTA)

MARTA is the only transit agency surveyed that has adopted TOD Guidelines with
affordable housing as a specific goal. MARTA believes that residential and mixed-use TOD
projects should include a component of affordable housing, which requires a collaborative
effort among multiple stakeholders: municipal and county zoning jurisdictions in the
MARTA service area, their housing authorities, the state of Georgia, the Department of
Housing and Urban Development, for-profit and non-profit developers, lenders, community
groups and MARTA itself. Together, these stakeholders must apply a diverse affordable
housing “toolbox”, including land availability, zoning, housing finance subsidy programs and
infrastructure improvements.

The TOD Guidelines were adopted in late 2010, and include a broad definition of affordable
housing. Affordable housing, as defined by MARTA, includes workforce housing, as well as
housing affordable to seniors with low, moderate or fixed incomes, and persons with
disabilities. MARTA, in collaboration with the local jurisdictions, will establish a minimum
percentage of affordable units on a project-by-project basis, and those goals will be clearly
stated in its RFPs. The percentage will reflect market conditions, zoning, and the availability
of federal, state or local housing finance incentives. Financial incentives, such as higher
densities and reduced parking requirements, may be used to encourage the inclusion of
workforce units.

14





